The University of Surrey Students’ Union

Annual Members Meeting
11th May 2022

AMM Agenda 2022
Committee membership
Apologies for absence
Matters arising:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Minutes of the previous meeting
Presentation and approval of the Annual Accounts
Presentation and approval of the budget
Approval of external affiliations
Presentation of the Students’ Union Annual Report
Continuing Policy
Member motions
Students’ Union Diversity Report

Minutes of the AMM 2021
Minutes of a meeting held online at 12:00 on the 12 th of May 2021.
Committee Membership:
The membership of the AMM comprises all full Union members.
The meeting was chaired by the Union Chair, Amina Ehiobuche-Nagwamma. The Sabbatical
Team 2020-21 were also present.
The Students’ Union’s Chief Executive, Alan Sutherland, and Deputy Chief Executive, Debra
Rideout, were in attendance to provide information to the meeting.
Apologies for absence:
No apologies were received.
Matters arising:
1. Minutes of the previous meeting: Members voted to approve the minutes of the
last meeting.
2. Presentation and approval of the Annual Accounts:
The Union’s Annual Accounts had been presented to members 14 days before the meeting.
The CEO provided a short summary relating to the Union’s efforts to minimalise the impact
of the pandemic on finances. The meeting was asked to confirm these accounts had been
received. The meeting voted to receive the accounts.
3. Presentation and approval of the budget:
The budget had been presented to students 14 days before the meeting. The Chief
Executive explained the budget has already been discussed with the University and has been
to the Union’s Board of Trustees. The Deputy CEO provided a summary of the budget and
explained that the subvention request was based on this budget but was yet to be
confirmed. A member asked a question about the Union’s decision to aim to be cashless in
the light of the pandemic. The President explained there would still be a cash machine
available on the campus. Members voted to approve the budget.
4 . Approval of external affiliations
The list of affiliations was presented to the committee. Members voted to approve the
affiliations.
5. Presentation of Students’ Union Annual Report
The Union President explained that this is the annual report from the 2019-20 academic
year. Members voted to receive the report.
6. Continuing policy

The Chair introduced the President, who briefly explained that the officer team had met in
advance of the AMM papers being published, and was proposing to discontinue the Union’s
policies:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Keep Wednesday afternoons free
Climate week
Increased Student Numbers
End the hostile environment
Surrey Decides Chairing
Union’s policy on the University’s Continuous Improvement Plan.

Members voted to approve the discontinuation of these policies. After the voting time
had elapsed, a member asked to discuss the Climate Week motion. The Chair advised that
this should be raised at the next Union Executive meeting.
6.b Continuing Policy continued: the Union President explained that the rest of the
motions in the paperwork were proposed to continue as Union Policy.
Members voted to approve the continuation of these motions.
7. Member motions
Student member James Daly discussed his motion for the Union to commit to zero net
carbon, declaring a conflict of interest. A member asked about how water consumption is
managed currently, and whether this would be more expensive for the Union. JD explained
that yes it could be more expensive but could be carefully managed. Students voted to
approve the motion.
The VP Voice proposed the motion for the Liberation Committee to be removed from the
Byelaws and replaced with the concept of the Liberation Network. The VP Voice responded
to a question from the President regarding whether the Liberation Network could continue
to have access to two votes on the Union Executive. The VP Voice explained there was no
intention to remove this, but this could in fact be part of leadership structure within the
network as it developed. Students voted to approve the motion.
8. Students’ Union Diversity Report: The Chief Executive presented the report and
explained that the Union no longer has a gender pay gap.
The Union Chair thanked the members and closed the meeting.
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UNIVERSITY OF SURREY STUDENTS’ UNION
TRUSTEES’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

The Board of Trustees present their Annual Report for the year ended 31 July 2021 which includes the
administrative information set out on page 1, together with the audited accounts for that year.
Structure, governance and management
USSU is constituted under the Education Act 1994 as a charity (see page 1) with internal regulations or Rules
approved by the governing body of the University of Surrey. The Union is a Company Limited by Guarantee.
The Charitable Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents.
Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the owners of the Charitable Company
in the event of it being wound up, while they are a member, such amount as may be required, and not
exceeding £1.
USSU charitable Objects under the Act, to advance the Universities’ educational purposes by providing
representation and support for the students of the University, are supplemented by the further Object of helping
members to develop their own charitable activities as active participants in civil society.
USSU is administered by its Executive Committee of fourteen students elected annually by cross-campus
ballot of the USSU membership. The five posts of President, VP Voice, VP Support, VP Community and VP
Activity are full-time, or ‘sabbatical’, posts remunerated as authorised by the Education Acts and cannot
exceed two years’ duration for each holder. The five full-time Officers, Union Chairperson, University Trustee
and four external trustees are regarded as the charity trustees of USSU for the purposes of the Charities Acts.
It should be noted that, due to COVID-19, the period of office for the 2020/21 sabbatical team was extended
and ended on 31st July 2021, with the new team taking over with effect from 1st August 2021.
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Pay and remuneration of key management personnel is determined by a variety of contributory factors, such
as, the size of the Students’ Union, the pay scales for each role e.g. sabbaticals, CEO etc., and the level of
experience of the staff member. In addition to this, levels of pay may be effected by the ability to recruit key
management personnel and retain them in post, which all coincides with the student union’s appointment and
pay policies. All amendments to the pay and remuneration policy for the key management personnel is
discussed and agreed by the trustees. The day to day running of the Union is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer and the Deputy CEO.
Risk Management
The Finance Committee has examined the major strategic, business and operational risks faced by USSU in
particular those relating to governance, finance, student experience, health and safety, organisation,
operations, reputation, HR and ICT. A risk register has been established and is updated at least annually.
The Students’ Union prime risks are:




Failure to manage costs improve efficiency and maintain financial stability. Current mitigation: is
Annual budgets detailed monitoring and production of monthly finance reports. Monthly finance
meeting with quarterly trustee meetings.
Loss or reduction in annual subvention. Current mitigation: Continuing cooperation with the university
encouragement of positive links from Sabbatical officers to key University personnel. Transparency of
the USSU core aims and objectives
Failure to improve the student experience. Current mitigation: Implementation of the Zone structure
enabling VP’s to complete their manifestos.

Where appropriate, systems or procedures have been established to mitigate the risks the charity faces.
Budgetary and internal control risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for authorisation of all
transactions and projects. Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with health and safety of staff,
volunteers and participants on all activities organised by the Union. Staff training and development are in place
to ensure staff are aware of the risks and have the necessary skills and ability to complete the designated
role. KPI’s are regularly reviewed to pick up any early warning signs that issues may be these occurring. These
procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the charity.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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This year, the risk of Covid 19 and its impact is considered on a rolling and future basis. The Union’s plans
and response to the pandemic have been quickly delivered and are adaptable. The Union team are paying
particular attention to Rubix nightclub and the adaptations needed in order to deliver a Covid secure venue
and social experience for the students. With the onset of Freshers week and the first few weeks of term, the
Union has seen the positive impact that the ‘Rubix Lounge’ is making to students - they have a secure space
in which to meet with others. This initiative is reviewed on a regular basis and it should be noted that while we
do not have the expenditure associated with hosting acts or entertainment; the costs relevant to staffing and
ensuring the venue adheres to the required levels of safety as a secure Covid zone, are very high.
The Unions management team have produced differing scenario forecasts that take account of the
Governments tier system. These will be referred to in order to ensure the financial viability of the Union for
2021/22 and onwards.
Procedures and Policies of Trustee Induction and Training
In the year 2020/21 a new external trustee was appointed – Anne Milton and a new student trustee – Tom
Marsh was appointed in July 2021. Induction training was provided for the new trustees which included both
internal and external training. On-going training will be made available to the trustees during their office
including attendance at conferences, specific training events and access to website training materials.
Group structure
The Student Union has a wholly owned subsidiary, Origin Events Limited. See Note 8 for further details.
Aims, Objectives and activities
The Board of Trustees has identified The University of Surrey Students’ Union’s vision and mission as “To be
a leading UK Students’ Union that has a positive impact on every University of Surrey student - To enrich
students’ lives, the community in which they live and the University of Surrey by creating the changes they
want and to enable them to achieve their ambitions”. During 2016/17, the board of trustees agreed a new five
year strategy for the Students’ Union. This strategy was put to members for approval during the annual
elections and 1847 members voted, with 89.5% approving the strategy. The key aims from the strategy are
as follows










The Union will be proactive in learning what our members want: By talking more to our members,
giving them the opportunity to talk to us – easier and quicker, and doing quality research without the
burden of endless lengthy surveys, the sabbaticals, and Union executive will have a closer and more
relevant understanding of what our students think, and what is important to them.
Student leaders will be supported to take action in response to the student voice: To create
change, and enrich the lives of our members, we must react to what we know. Although it is important
to acknowledge that we are constrained by our charitable objectives. Student leaders are not just
elected to deliver on election promises, but to react to the voice of students.
Elected student fcovidofficers will be supported to deliver on key manifesto pledges: With a
solid foundation of student opinion to support elected student officers in their decision making, it is
also vital that student officers do not simply become messengers, reporting through committee what
the latest survey results are. The diversity of ideas comes from the annual election process and the
resultant manifestos. The representative democracy of the Students’ Union will be supported by
enabling elected officers, not only to develop their election manifestos, but to deliver on them.
Students will be well informed on the work of the Union and their representatives: We will not
just listen silently to our membership, but will inform them of what their Union has been doing in their
name, and what it continues to do following what they have told us. By hearing about the impact their
voice has made, and how they have been listened to, the credibility of the Union will be enhanced and
continue a virtuous circle of student engagement.
Students will recognise the Union as an organisation that is true to their values: The way the
Students’ Union collectively operates is important, for the credibility of the organisation and the
relationships that exist with external stakeholders as well as with our members. Our values will be
rooted in what we do, elected officers, signatories, staff, and all active members will be expected to
know what is expected of them in the living realisation of our values.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

In pursuit of these aims for public benefit, The University of Surrey Students’ Union will ensure the
diversity of its membership is recognised, valued and supported and has established services for use
by its members and to support its work with the University and other organisations on behalf of students.
These include the Students’ Union support service, volunteering and training, diverse student activities,
and support for student sports clubs and societies, alongside our commercial activities which include
our Rubix nightclub. The
Executive Officers of the Union sit on the majority of the committees of the University of Surrey and
meet regularly with department and central service heads on campus.
The charity trustees, have complied with their duty as determined by Section 17(5) of the Charities Act
2011 having due regard to the Charity Commission’s published general guidance concerning the
operation of the public benefit requirement.
The University of Surrey Students’ Union continues to represent the students of this University on
relevant local, national and international issues by maintaining a high proportion of student
representatives. The Union facilitates training and communication with 600 student course
representatives and has a committee of 15 executive officers contributing across the University from
SSLC (student liaison committees) to the highest University committees, Senate and Council. In
2019/20 the Union participated in the Student Life Pulse survey from Alterline ltd, which surveyed all
students for their views on the Union and its activities. This now forms the basis of most KPI
measurement.
COVID-19 Student Support
This year, COVID-19 Student Support has been at the heart of the Union President’s work, from
supporting individual students with personal circumstances, monitoring constantly changing regulations
and lobbying changes within the University in the best interests of students. The pandemic has changed
the face of the 2020/21 Sabbatical team’s year however under the President’s leadership they adapted
and changed to ensure that the voice of the students was heard in an extremely challenging time.
Examples of student-specific support included the President running COVID-19 drop-in sessions,
following the January Lockdown announcement, talking to any student who had any worries or concerns
and helping them to discover what the Students’ Union could do to support individual students.
University Academic Safety Net
Following student concern regarding the change in grade averages, after the move to hybrid and fully
online teaching in line with the local and national lockdowns, the Union President worked alongside the
University to instigate a Safety Net Policy for students in line with the 2019/20 academic year. This
Safety Net subsequently meant that a student’s overall mark for the 2020/21 academic year would not
be lower than the grade achieved at the end of Semester 1. This came as a relief to many students who
had rising concerns about the impact COVID-19 would have on their education and reassured many
students that the educational impact that COVID-19 had on them would be effectively minimised.
University Accommodation Rent Rebates
Alongside the news of local and national lockdowns by the Government in January, the news that
students were unable to return to their student accommodation came as a potentially huge financial
burden for many students, who were concerned they would be paying for University Accommodation
that, by law, they were not allowed to return to. The President initiated frequent and in-depth
conversations with the University emphasising the financial impact this will have on the community, and
the unfairness that by following the law, students are taking the financial impact.
Following successful lobbying and conversations, rent rebates for students in University residences
were introduced from the 4th of January 2021. Students in residences that could not return had the
opportunity to apply to receive 100% of their rent back for the period that they were not on site. This
rebate scheme was agreed to continue until the end of the academic year, providing huge financial
support for the Surrey student community in reflection of the government mandated changes.
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University Accountability
Following the University of Surrey’s substantial drop in the NSS and Guardian League Tables, the
Students’ Union took student concerns to the University, explaining that their experience had not being
suitable or what students had expected whilst being in Higher Education. A letter from the Students’
Union was produced and written to Professor Max Lu (Vice Chancellor) asking for an explanation of the
drop and the University’s plans to refocus the student experience.
Further examples of University accountability this academic year include continuing to lobby the
University to divest from Barclays in line with the Students’ Union standpoint on the matter and querying
decisions regarding tuition fees and not funding PCR tests for students alongside the decision made
surrounding hybrid graduations, just to name a few.
University Accountability has been at the heart of the Officer Team this academic year and has been
integrated into all conversations and actions on student voice throughout all meetings, discussions, and
conversations.
First Offence Warden Fine Removal
At the start of the 2020/21 Academic Year, authorised personnel within the University can impose a
level of discipline on our students which includes the chance to enforce on-the-spot monetary fines.
Surrey prides itself on having a hugely diverse community with students from a variety of different
cultures and socio-economic backgrounds, and our student support needs to reflect this.
On-the-spot monetary fines provide a disproportionate impact of discipline within our student
community. With the potential of £50 fines for students, for some students this represents a small
percentage of their weekly spending, however to some students this can equate to 2 weeks’ worth of
shopping.
It is the duty of the University to safeguard our students and ensure that they are healthy, and that
means we must limit significant negative impact, as much as possible.
A proposal was accepted and approved to implement the following as a one-year policy change trial:
The standard position will be that on-the-spot fines will not be issued for 1st offences, with the exception
being those of dangerous actions to the student and others where the severity is reflected in escalation.
Any fines for 1st offences will be suspended and only activated if a panel is convened, except for
dangerous actions.
Second offences automatically result in activation of a suspended fine or panel referral A Communal
Living Workshop will be introduced in relace of a first offence warden fine.
The Communal Living Workshops were incredibly successful this academic year and there has been
agreement to continue this proposal for future academic years, a huge success.
Launched the Surrey Sabbcast
A new endeavour for the 2020/21 Academic Year was the introduction of the Surrey Sabbcast, a weekly
podcast hosted by the Sabbatical officers (Sabbs). This podcast gave Sabbatical team the opportunity
to highlight specific topics prominent in Higher Education or specifically to Surrey at the time, alongside
updating students about what each Sabbatical officer has been working on and continues to work on,
on behalf of students.
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Throughout the year, the Sabbs have also had the pleasure of hosting numerous different guests from
across the academic and student community. To name just a few, these sabbcasts included:
Return to Campus Special with Lucy Evans, Deborah Lawson, and Stephen Wells
The Rule of Six Explained with Jim Dickinson from WONKHE
The Race Experience at Surrey with Muse Berhe and Dr Alfred Thumser
Safety Net & Extenuating Circumstances with Adam Child, Cathy Derham and Zoe Wilkes
LGBT+ History Month Special with Michael Hassel and Erin Baker
Colourism Special with Catherine Anyanwu
Voice Your Opinion Forums
Student Voice Forums are a core part of the Students’ Union and ensuring that students have the
opportunity to question senior management and have their voices heard at all levels. With the constantly
changing government regulations, the President introduced the Voice Your Opinion Forums to run
between Student Voice Forums. These forums focused on specific concerns from students, with the
relevant members of academic and support staff from the University present in line with key student
concerns. These forums provided a platform for the student voice to be heard, and additional support
to be provided, through an incredibly turbulent year.
RAG Committee Introduction
As a Students’ Union, Raising and Giving (RAG) should be a staple of our ethos, and everything done
to support it. The Students’ Union have already made huge strides in the development of RAG at Surrey,
with the re-introduction of a RAG Chair as a specific Part-Time Community Zone Position and the
encouragement of RAG Reps within our clubs & societies.
The next step is to bring together those reps and students with an interest in RAG and co-ordinate our
approach and activities. This will allow us to raise the profile of RAG both on and off campus, and raise
as much money as possible for the charities that students have voted to support.
This RAG committee would be similar in structure to the Sport & Society Standing in which our RAG
Chair would lead the meeting and all RAG Reps would be invited to attend. This invitation would also
be extended to any students within the Surrey community who have a specific interest in raising and
giving and are not currently involved in a club or society or are individual charity fundraisers themselves.
This committee will commence at the start of the 2021/22 Academic Year.
Part Time Officer Involvement & Awareness
Feedback from part-time officer’s in previous years has outlined that involvement and awareness was
limited in comparison to Sabbatical officers within the team. This year, the President ensured that
alongside the Sabbatical officer introductions at the beginning of their term, part-time officers were also
spotlighted to ensure that students knew who they were. Alongside this, part-time officer ‘wins’ were
introduced, so that specific success stories from individual part-time officers could be celebrated and
were not incorporated into the zone wins that are published, which are naturally linked to the Sabbatical
officer who is leading that zone.
Alongside this, the Union President began mandated and regular catch ups between the part-time
officers (PTOs) and key members of the Executive Board. It came to light that Sabbatical officers often
had the chance to question members of the Executive Board on a regular basis however our part-time
officers often did not. The introduction of regular (minimum once per semester) meetings between these
two groups meant that students were able to directly hold senior management to account and
subsequently feed responses back to their peer group. On top of this, if PTOs wanted to focus on a
specific topic, chances were organised for the interested officers to meet with members of staff that
were directly involved in areas concerned.
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Letter to Matt Hancock regarding COVID-19 Student Blame
Subsequent to the announcement by Matt Hancock (MP) in Semester one that it was believed that
young people were to blame for the increase in a rise in COVID-19 cases in the UK, the President saw
the dissatisfaction expressed by Surrey students and took action in the form of a joint Students’ Union
letter from Sabbatical officers from around the country to Matt Hancock, disagreeing with these claims.
The letter was sent on behalf of over 30 Students’ Union with close to 40 signatures from different
Sabbatical officers within those charities. The letter demonstrated the power of coming together as a
collective of student representatives and the power that Unions have, to make sure that the Student
Voice is heard at government level, regardless of high-level opinion.
Yearly Standing Motion Report Introduction
Feedback from students this academic year expressed a concern that when motions are passed at
committees such as the executive committee, in previous years there has been limited updates on the
status of different motions and their actions, so the Union President took the initiative to introduce the
‘Yearly Standing Motion Report’, one which is hoped to continue and roll over year to year.
The report will outline every motion that is currently standing at the Students’ Union. Each action will be
listed and progress on this action and whether it is complete or still in progress will be outlined. This
report will increase the transparency on the workings of the Union and hold officers to account following
the mandate that a motion ensues. At the end of the report each year, a list of actions for each zone
will be mandated and passed over to the next officer team to achieve.
Armed Forces Covenant
A lot of work this year focused on ensuring students from Widening Participation backgrounds had
access to the tailored and sustained support that was required to help them thrive at university; This
led to the signing of the Armed Forces Covenant. The signing of this covenant, following lobbying by
the Students’ Union, represents a commitment that the University makes to ensure that students and
staff who have a military connection are not disadvantaged during their further education journey. This
commitment includes including deployment evidence as valid grounds for EC’s and increased wellbeing
support.
Free School Meals & Work within the Community
Following the announcement from the Government that they would not be providing free school meals
during the October half term for those children eligible for free school meals, the Students’ Union and
the University came together to provide free meals for those that need it most at Kings College School
in Park Barn. This collaboration demonstrated the way that the University and the Union can come
together to support the local community and our Guildford residents.
Miscarriage Policy Introduction
Miscarriage is the most common type of pregnancy loss, affecting 1 in 4 pregnancies and a quarter of
a million people in the United Kingdom each year, yet when you explore many employers’ parental
bereavement and maternity policies, these specifically dictate that they only offer support after 24
weeks. Effectively, support by many employers exists solely for stillbirths, rather than encompassing
miscarriages as well.
It is important within institutions that those who have experienced such loss are provided with
incremental support. Support is often suggested for those individuals who have been personally
impacted, however, the partners who have shared in the journey can all but be forgotten about. Ensuring
that a support network is there for the individuals who have suffered such bereavement is imperative,
hence the importance of offering support for partners of individuals who have miscarried. Partners
should not need to use sick leave to offer support through this.
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Within its maternity policies the University of Surrey Students’ Union (USSU) have introduced and codified
support for employees should they experience a miscarriage, either directly or as a partner. Pregnant USSU
employees who experience a miscarriage are eligible for 6 weeks fully paid sick leave (once the baby is past
12 weeks’ gestation). USSU employees whose pregnant partners experience a miscarriage are eligible for 3
weeks fully paid sick leave (once the baby is past 12 weeks’ gestation). None of this support will be included
in yearly sick pay leave allowance to ensure future circumstances are not impacted.
Period Poverty
Period Poverty within the student population has become a key topic among Higher Education Institutions
over the past couple of years and it was vitally important the University of Surrey offered support for those
students who may not be able to afford sanitary products, with this came the launch of the Period Poverty
Initiative at Surrey.
With approval of funding from the University, four different free vend stations will be placed around both
campuses which will offer 24 hours free vend of period products for any student that needs it. These will
always endeavour to be in unisex locations to ensure access for everyone. Alongside this, there will be a
developed project within the HIVE which will offer free period products alongside items to support students
when things may go wrong such as additional underwear.
Following lobbying from the Students’ Union, the University have committed to cover all costs for a 6-month
trial starting in September 2021 which the Union hopes to continue as a long-term project in the future as a
commitment to support our students and their health.
Widening Participation Focus Groups & Report
At Surrey, we are incredibly lucky to have a hugely diverse student community with thousands of students
from different backgrounds, however, this means we have thousands of students with different education and
holistic needs.
The initiative was taken to run a series of focus groups with different widening participation groups (e.g.
commuter students, mature students, LGBT+ Students) to discover more about their experiences, what they
would change and what the future student experience of students like them should look like. These
recommendations were then formulated to offer recommendations to the University to ensure that the best,
tailored and sustained support is offer to all of our students from all different walks of life.
Free Speech
The much publicised bill on freedom of speech was launched in 2021 to combat the perceived “chilling effect”
of free speech curbs in higher education. We worked with a small group of other Student Unions and the policy
website Wonkhe to produce our answer to what we believe the problem is. In short, we do not believe that
there is the so- called “chilling effect”, however a very small number of isolated incidents have been
misreported in the press for political gain. We did however agree that there are things we could do better, and
as a group, produced a proposal for a new code for campus free speech1. Since the publication of this report
we have had, and will continue to have meaningful discussions with the officials in the Dept of Education prior
to the final guidance for the act being published.
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ZONE ACTIVITY
The work of the Union is presented in four zones, Voice, Activity, Support and Community. Each zone
is led by a VP with the President in overall leadership of the Union.
VOICE ZONE
In a challenging year for student engagement, the Voice Zone has worked closely together to achieve
outcomes for students, despite the difficulties we have all experienced working remotely throughout.
Black History Month
At the beginning of the year, the Zone worked to coordinate the Student Union’s contribution to Black
History Month alongside staff from the University’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion department. A joint
calendar of events was produced featuring Union societies and University-led events, including an
online panel discussion organised by the VP Voice with participation from for members of the black
community representing alumni, University academic and professional services staff, and featuring the
VP Voice 2019-20, Ajay Ajimobi. The team also produced the content for the Union’s channels on
Black History, signposting members to further reading.
A New Liberation Network
The VP Voice led discussions within the Union on the future of the Liberation Committee, which had
been incomplete in the previous year and was a source of frustration to students and their
representatives. Working with the Union Chair and Union’s Management Committee, it was agreed
that a new Liberation Network would be piloted which brought students together from liberation
backgrounds and beyond, to work on campaigns and projects and to take part in activity.
The network successfully formed but was limited in the activity that could take place. At the Union’s
Annual Members’ Meeting in May 2021, it was agreed that the Liberation Network would replace the
Liberation Committee, and next year aim to expand and reinvigorate liberation activism and activity on
campus, to ensure all sectors of the student body are acknowledged and celebrated.
Democratic Activity
During a challenging year we conducted three main democratic events:
Make Your Change: Students at Surrey vote annually on their ‘priority campaign’ for the year. This
year, although idea submissions from students were lower, turnout for voting (860) was nearly double
the previous year. The winning idea was once again Sustainable Surrey and this idea was taken
forward by the Community Zone who hosted several successful Sustainability Forum events.
Group AGMs and EGMs: This year all 176 group AGMs and 44 EGMs took place online via Teams
using a workflow which enabled officers to officiate them remotely, using online voting. In the light of
the pandemic and lack of engagement between some members and their clubs and societies, some
temporary changes were made to the Union’s rules, including allowing groups to remain active provided
they could elect at least 2 signatories rather than the usual 3. This helped enable most student groups
to stay active into the next academic year.
Surrey Decides (main election process): Our normal officer elections were postponed due to the
pandemic and took place in late April/early May. Rescheduling the election enabled Surrey to be the
only Students’ Union to host an in-person Question Time event, which took place in the Marquee and
live online. Participation in the election reached 71 nominations and a voter turnout of 2257 votes,
which compares favourably across the sector during a difficult year. A full officer team was elected for
the academic year 2021-22.
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Course Representatives
The Course Representatives (Course Rep) programme underwent numerous significant changes this
year. Firstly, due to the pandemic, all Course Rep training had to take place online, and all our Student
Voice Forum events similarly were hosted digitally. Continuing the previous success of hosting an online
Course Rep nomination process, this year we streamlined the process, culminating in elections running
in their smoothest manner this May. During the year, we also transferred Rep training content onto the
new Skills Platform, to share the knowledge gained by Reps to other students, supporting the Union’s
Employability Pulse opportunity. We also wrote and submitted a proposal to standardise PGR Course
Rep elections, in order to improve consistency, democracy, and awareness of the PGR Rep role. The
hope is that PGR Rep elections will be improved and implemented in October 2021. Finally, we also
worked collaboratively with the University Comms team to raise awareness of Course Reps by
producing promotional videos and Rep Profiles which were hosted on the Union website and also
emailed out in personalised messages to all students.
Course Reps themselves have worked hard to balance the voluntary role alongside their studies in an
unusual year, whilst also adapting to hybrid learning, and facing the challenge of not being able to meet
all their peers or chat to them face to face to gather feedback. However, Reps have been vital in
consulting on changes to modules and assessments for hybrid learning, and helping to create
community within departments, with some Reps starting fantastic initiatives such as thank you
Christmas cards for academic staff, student buddy schemes, online coffee mornings, and games nights.
Finally, Reps have worked hard to adapt to the new student feedback platform, MySurrey Voice
(powered by Unitu), and encouraging students to utilise the platform to share their feedback, concerns,
and praise.
MySurrey Voice
In August 2020, the Vice-Provost Education, Prof. Osama Khan, aimed to implement a new student
feedback platform, Unitu. The Voice Zone were involved in the project group for the implementation of
the platform, and in just under 6 weeks, contributed to the successful launch. The Voice Zone was
involved in finalising branding, marketing materials, student communications, updating University
policies, and numerous other strategic decisions.
The new platform also required a redesign of all our Course Rep promotional materials, training content,
and policy documents to account for the new platform. The work of the Zone was highly valued in the
implementation of this project. Over the year, the Zone has worked to support Reps in adapting to the
new platform and liaised with the University to raise any concerns around student and staff usage of
the platform. 98% of Course Reps have activated their accounts, though student activation has been
lower. Most recently, the Zone has begun collaboratively evaluating the platform with the aim to increase
its impact for 2021/22.
Student Voice Forum
The Student Voice Forum was hosted entirely online through the year and achieved its greatest level
of participation, with 370 Course Reps in attendance at the second (February) forum. The forum
meetings provided an essential live connection between the student body and University decision
makers, and discussed prevalent issues including hybrid learning, rent rebates, the new MySurrey
Voice platform and University to student communications.
Continuing with the themed Forum structure, the discussions this year were particularly helpful in
addressing bigger issues impacting the wider student body, rather than individual issues with limited
relevancy to the full audience. We also continued to utilise interactive polls via Menti to gather live
feedback on these topics, which have proved helpful in platforming the student voice on these wider
issues. We extend our thanks to our University colleagues Professor Osama Khan, Andy Chalklin and
Lucy Evans for their participation in these panel events.
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Zone Member Achievements
Despite the difficulties of operating mainly virtually, the Part-Time Officers within the Voice Zone this
year have made significant contributions in promoting the student voice at Surrey:
Collaborated with the Support and Activity Zones on campaigns such as Eating Disorder Awareness
and projects such as a Signatory Exit Survey.
Ran dedicated campaigning workshop to educate students on running an effective campaign.
Made substantive contributions to make the Union and University feedback systems such as MySurrey
Voice more effective.
Contributed to Course Rep training, including material for Joint Honours students to help them navigate
the complexities of their course administration.
Advocated for PGR Course Rep elections to be standardised alongside creating a Postgraduate
Engagement Forum chairs forum.
Liaised with University communications team to ensure that students are receiving relevant information
from the University, and suggesting how communications can be better tailored for PGR students.
Met with Employability & Careers team regarding improved support for placement students.
Had regular meetings with senior management to hold them to account for their promises at Zone
meetings and All Officer meetings on topics including assessments and hybrid learning.
Organised a campaign aimed at increasing voter turnout in Guildford local elections.
Contributed to ensuring SurreyDecides ran smoothly, through chairing debates, promoting elections,
and moderating public comments.
VP Voice Achievements
In addition to the projects and successes outlined earlier, the VP Voice has been involved in numerous
University projects and working groups and has also worked to implement manifesto points throughout
the year. Firstly, with the aim to align Course Reps more closely with departmental societies, the new
society role of Departmental Liaison Officer was created. This role exists to expose Course Reps to the
society membership to diversify the feedback they gather, and also to provide an opportunity for
departmental societies to contribute to feedback discussions. This pilot idea has hopefully set positive
groundwork to be built upon in the coming academic year, especially as society activity begins to
resume following the lifting of Covid restrictions.
Secondly, the VP Voice also worked to represent accessibility issues to the University and to continue
to advocate for improved accessibility across Surrey campuses. This has included policy work
throughout the pandemic, securing carer campus cards, and making practical improvements such as
accessible ramps and fixing lifts.
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Finally, throughout the year, the VP Voice has contributed to the Learning Analytics project and the Academic
Standards and Curriculum Review project, consulted on the Doctoral College’s proposal for PHDs by
Publication, and has collaborated with the Library team to increase access to online e-textbooks via Bibliu,
amongst other work throughout the year.
Pulse Achievements
The Voice Zone has seen some key achievements in Pulse results this year. Agreement that “The Students’
Union effectively represents students’ academic interests” rose from 58% in 2019/20 to 66% in 2020/21.
Similarly, satisfaction and agreement to questions such as “The Students’ Union represents students on the
right academic issues”, “I know what the Students’ Union is doing to represent my academic interests”, and
“The Students’ Union represents the views of students effectively” also rose from 19/20 to 20/21. Awareness
and use of Course Reps also rose this year, including awareness of how to contact Course Reps, and
awareness that Course Reps are part of the SU, both of which have been particular areas of focus. Finally,
agreement with the statement “I can influence decisions made by the Students’ Union” rose by 7% in Pulse 2
this year.
ACTIVITY ZONE
Clubs and Societies
The Activity Zone’s clubs and societies continue to amaze with their valuable contribution to the student
experience at Surrey. Despite the majority of activity being on hold for almost 50% of the year, many student
groups created online communities and kept morale high with over 9000 student club and society
memberships being recorded.
Highlights for Team Surrey clubs included Netball putting on a string of virtual charity events accessible to all
and raising much needed funds for Oakleaf, Rape Crisis UK and the Netball Development Trust; Fencing
completing a 12 hour lunge-a-thon in aid of Surrey Nightline; Boat Club members covered over 4600km to
raise money for Guildford Action and worked closely with AgeUK Surrey to support elderly patients over
Christmas and Women’s Football organised walking challenges, virtual horse racing and participated in the
Tri-Kelly’s Challenge to raise money for Movember, Macmillan, The Children’s Trust and The Alzheimer’s
Society.
Some clubs were fortunate enough to be able to compete and had some great results. Triathlon were one of
the first clubs to compete in BUCS in 2020/21 and did not disappoint. Roisin Browne came third in April’s
Duathlon and went even better weeks later at the Standard Triathlon, winning gold in the female event – the
first Surrey female to ever do so! The men did well too, gaining three top 30 finishes in the Duathlon and a 9th
place for Luke Gwenter in the Standard Triathlon. Boat Club’s dedicated athletes had their hard work pay-off
at a successful BUCS Regatta in June taking home 2 Gold medals, 8 Silver medals and 1 Bronze medals.
Finally, Karting resumed their British University Champs competition and narrowly missed out on the medals
claiming a very respectable 5th place out of 40 universities and the Canoe Club achieved an excellent 4th
place at the BUCS Canoe Polo Championships; their best finish to date!
Societies have equally impressed in their efforts this year; Islamic Society raised an incredible £30,000 during
their Islamic fundraising week; Paramedic Society created a video for mental health awareness which went
viral and the president was invited to BBC Surrey to discuss the project; Business Society were shortlisted at
the Bright Network Society of the Year Awards 2020 under the category of “Impact on Campus”; Christian
Union organised a two-week long event on Zoom called ‘Encounter’, they invited speakers and interviewees
from around the world (US to Africa) to speak which was well attended; Surrey Economics and Finance Society
managed to partner with five organizations and secured sponsorships from companies such as Lazard and
Charles Stanley, which is definitely a big feat for a society running under the pressures of Covid-19 restrictions
and Dodgeball organised ‘Operation: Spread Joy’, a project set up as a continuation from last year, to give
back to the Guildford community and provide those who are struggling on the streets with a bag of essential
items including toothbrush, toothpaste, soap, face masks, comb, socks, gloves and some bags had extra
items such as scarfs, hairbands and sanitary products for female specific bags.
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COVID-19 Officers
One of Activity’s biggest successes of the year was the recruitment, training and implementation of over 400
volunteer COVID-19 Officers. Any society that wanted to resume their core activity or hold a social had to
nominate at least one Covid-19 Officer, this involved leading on the health & safety of the group, risk assessing
activity and ensuring that all measures put in place were satisfied. This involved extra work for our groups but
they fully embraced the new role and complied with our new measures.
Signatory Exit Survey
Working with the Voice Zone, we launched our first Signatory Exit survey for the outgoing 2020/21 committees.
We received a response rate of around 15% to questions concerning readiness for signatory roles, club/society
feeling valued and employability and wellbeing being supported. We had some really pleasing results, with
over 75% of respondents reporting they felt the Union and/or Team Surrey had fully equipped them in feeling
ready to run a club or society; 70% strongly agreed or agreed the Union and/or Team Surrey had
communicated effectively and nearly 70% believing that the Union and/or Team Surrey had supported the
wellbeing of committee and members. The results of the survey will be shared with the incoming Activity Zone
with an action plan being created and objectives assigned to the team. We will also continue to use this survey
annually and increase the response rate.
Drug & Alcohol Awareness Campaign
This year, VP Activity & VP Community conducted research into student drug use at the University of Surrey
by sharing a survey across a range of Union platforms. Over 800 students took part in the survey with the key
finding being that drug use is relatively common among Surrey students, with 43% of respondents reported
having used drugs while at the university. Many respondents, including those who had not personally partaken
in drug use, disclosed an awareness for drug use being a regular occurrence at Surrey. The data from the
survey was turned into a drug use report with the intention of reviewing it every couple of years to identify how
drug behaviours, experiences and attitudes of students are changing. The student drug report was presented
to Management Committee in November 2020 and it was agreed that the Union would form a partnership with
drug alcohol & harm reduction group, Neurosight.
Neurosight worked with us to reduce drug-related harm through evidence-based practices by conducting
research and delivering educational workshops and webinars to our students and also by helping us review
our Students’ Union and University drug policies and procedures. We held several meetings with key
stakeholders at the University to discuss adopting “harm reduction” as opposed to the current “zero-tolerance”
stance on drug use in order to protect students and give them a safe space to feel comfortable enough to ask
for help, without having to worry about any repercussions. As a result, the University did a review of their own
drug policy and updated it in March 2021. They are planning to launch their first ever drug campaign in
September 2021 as a result of these conversations.
One of the objectives of this campaign is continuity, therefore we have opened up an Students for Sensible
Drug Policy (SSDP) at Surrey after getting approval from Management Committee. SSDP is a global network
of students who lobby for fairer drug policies and greater harm reduction education. Any student can get
involved in this group and help organise drug education events, host discussions and be a voice within drug
reform activism.
Transgender & Non-Binary Policy
Following feedback from Surrey’s transgender community that they felt excluded from sport due to the gender
segregation prevalent throughout most clubs, we created the Union’s first Transgender & Non-Binary policy.
This allowed transgender students to know their rights when joining a club or attending an event with a binary
element and also to educate club committees on how to be more inclusive, not only in welcoming all students
but with the language and behaviours used.
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As a segue to launching the policy, we invited Loughborough University’s Joanna Harper to talk at Sports
Standing on the barriers that transgender individuals face when it comes to sport along with the science behind
hormone replacement therapy and how it affects athletes. Joanna is an advisor and consultant to several
international sporting federations including the International Olympic Committee so to have her speak to
Surrey students was a significant coup.
Employable Me
This year we chose to have a more regular and consistent Employable Me message rather than a couple of
key events. We implemented Employable Me Mondays on the Union’s Instagram stories featuring current
students who had held a volunteering position within the Union talking about the skills they’d gained and if/how
they had engaged with the University’s Careers & Employability platform. This was then followed up with links
to any employability related workshops or sessions happening that week and proved successful in increasing
the numbers engaged with such sessions.
Tri-Kelly’s Challenge
The restrictions didn’t prevent us from holding the annual Kelly’s Storage charity event; this year in the guise
of a virtual three-way challenge where participants could walk, run or cycle to meet a target distance over a
three-week period. Over 110 students took part and raised much needed funds for RAG’s chosen charities,
The Children’s Trust and The Alzheimer’s Society.
International Women’s Day
This year’s International Women’s Day saw the Union run an online awareness campaign which many clubs
and societies got behind with the hashtag #choosetochallenge.
Colours Awards
Despite the lack of sport this year, we still awarded a large number of Club, Half and Full Colours to students
who had either gone above and beyond their role in contributing to the organisation of their club or performed
at a high level for their university and beyond. We were also able to host an in-person ceremony, joint with
Union Ball, in The Marquee much to the delight of hundreds of students!
STARs Awards
This year STARs Awards were changed to incorporate a new badge scheme. We have five badges each with
their own criteria that clubs and societies can work towards gaining. This was based upon feedback from
students that STARs awards were too broad in the past and clubs and societies wanted to be able to focus
on one specific area.
The badges we awarded were:
Collaboration badge
Community Outreach, Volunteering and Fundraising badge
Wellbeing Badge
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Badge
Employable me Badge
Despite the difficulty in being able to achieve some of the criteria due to the pandemic, we were still able to
award six societies with Gold Stars Awards (4 or more badges). One Society with Silver (3 badges) and seven
Societies with Bronze (1/2 badges). For the Gold Stars winners we presented them with a certificate at the
Awards night and also hosted a pizza and prosecco party for them in The Marquee.
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SUPPORT ZONE
Academic Advice
The Support Zone has seen an increasing number of students seeking support from the Academic Advice
team, and whilst the overall increase is low (9.2% increase), we have seen a 23.5% increase in the number
of more complex student cases coming to the service including Disciplinaries, Fitness to Practise and
Academic Integrity cases. To accommodate for the increase in students we have recruited another full-time
Support Coordinator, to help with the growing advice service and Support Zone projects.
Throughout the pandemic we have continued our online service, providing Teams calls to support students
through online Panels and meetings. Additionally, we have continued our drop-in Extenuating Circumstances
(ECs) session and academic appeal service through Zoom. Since the success of some of our advice outreach
programmes, we have continued our Instagram takeovers “Ask Me Anything” about academic advice. We
have also increased our provision for support by introducing “Quick Queries” – 15-minute bookable
appointments with a member of the advice team.
This year, we have also submitted a proposal to the University to implement changes to the Regulations for
Academic Integrity to increase the range of penalties available to Academic’s when giving a penalty of
misconduct to students. Currently, the Union believe the penalties are too harsh when looking at the sector
and we hope that this proposal will be considered for the new academic year.
Welfare Watch
Welfare Watch ran throughout Fresher’s week at the Lake and in The Marquee but with COVID-19 restrictions,
they were unable to continue for the remainder of the academic year. They were, however able to support
with some of our other Union projects including a campaign for safe alcohol and drug use on campus, ‘Light
up the Night’ and other safety awareness campaigns. Additionally, Welfare Watch members were part of a
consultation with Surrey Police and the local community to help raise awareness of lone women on a night
out in Guildford. Welfare Watch are looking forward to returning to campus for Fresher’s week 2021.
Student Minds
Following the successful launch of the Student Minds: Positive Minds peer support group in the 2019/20
academic year, Student Minds continued their support offering this academic year. The peer support group
aims to support students who are experiencing low mood or depression at university, through a range of group
facilitation sessions, which focus on different themes for recovery.
The Support Zone and Student Minds committee trained 12 new Peer Support Facilitators who were inducted
into the programme in October 2020. Student Minds had a successful first term and were able to provide a 6week face to face cycle of the support group, as well as offering a 4-week online cycle.
As the University and the UK went into lockdown in January 2021, the Student Minds committee arranged for
support through exams, providing an online space for students to revise together.
They also ran a further three cycles of the Positive Minds sessions with good attendance throughout. The
success of the online programmes led to consultation with the charity Student Minds, who adopted the online
programme at other Universities.
A new committee has been elected for the new academic year 2021/22 with plans to expand the provision of
the service to cover more mental health campaigns and running ‘Motivate Me’, a peer support group for
students with eating difficulties.
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Nightline
Nightline have adapted well to the pandemic and although the listening volunteers were unable to access their
office to provide phone call and Instant Messaging support to students, they continued to run their 24 hour
email service for students who needed a listening ear. The new Nightline committee have been elected for the
21/22 academic year, with plans for additional training cycles in September 2021, before the semester starts,
to ensure volunteer engagement ready for Freshers’ Week.
Bereavement Support
Following the ‘Being Well,Doing Well’ wellbeing survey, which identified that 51% of Surrey students
experience a loss whilst they are at University, the VP Support manifesto this year focused on ensuring there
was more support in place for students who experienced a bereavement or loss at university.
The University agreed to amend the Regulations for Extenuating Circumstances to make it easier for students
to confirm a death of a significant other, meaning that you only need to provide evidence of the death and not
additional evidence to confirm the relationship to the student. This has made it more accessible for students
to access extensions and deferrals on assessments when they are grieving, which has been especially
important throughout the pandemic.
The VP Support also worked in collaboration with the Chaplaincy to introduce an online Bereavement Support
Group for students who have experienced loss or who are grieving, no matter when the loss happened. A safe
space to discuss thoughts and feelings with other students experiencing similar things, the support group has
been popular with students and will continue into the next academic year.
No More to Sexual Violence and Misconduct
One of the more memorable Support Zone campaigns this year was “No More Week” which focused on saying
‘No More’ to sexual violence and misconduct on campus, following alarming statistics from the NUS and our
‘Being Well,Doing Well’ survey. With a passionate Support Zone this year, their manifestos focused on calling
the University and Union to action to change the culture on campus and reduce sexual violence to students.
The campaign was a huge success and saw hundreds of students take part in our ‘Light Up The Night’ COVID19-secure march on campus to raise awareness and bring together the community.
Additionally, the Consent Course was launched earlier this year, in November 2020 and asked students to
sign up to #MakethePledge to educate themselves on consent and bystander behaviour, to make the campus
a safer place for everyone. The campaign was launched with a video including sports clubs and societies
encouraging their peers to take the course. The ‘No More’ campaign also included education sessions for men
on ‘How to be an Ally’ and called upon students to once again, #MakethePledge.
Following the campaign, the University and Council have committed to looking at campus and community
lighting to make areas safer. The University have also arranged the training of three staff to become SVLO’s
(Sexual Violence Liaison Officer’s), and new policies and support provisions are being developed for our
Student Sex Workers.
How to be an Ally
The VP Support introduced a new series of events named “How to be an Ally” and focused on educating
Surrey students on how they can be an ally to marginalised or vulnerable groups in society.
Collaborating with the zones, societies, and other VP’s, ‘How to be an Ally’ was ran online for a series of topics
including: Black culture, LGBTQ+, Women and non-men, autism and invisible disabilities.
Other Campaigns
Throughout the academic year, the Support Zone also ran their usual campaigns including ‘SurreyLove’, which
provided virtual activities to support revision and wellbeing over the examination period. We also ran our
Wellbeing Week in week 5 (also known as ‘drop-out week’) to provide a space for students to relax and
opportunities to talk about their experiences at university with a range of activities.
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We also ran our ‘Tea, Toast and Talk’ breakfast club, yoga sessions, online revision sessions with Student
Minds and a host of other events.
COMMUNITY ZONE
Following the COVID-19 restrictions, this year’s social activities were heavily affected. Many Students’ Unions
switched to completely online activity and closed their venues for the duration of the pandemic. We, however,
faced the challenges head-on and took every opportunity to offer as much in-person activity that was physically
possible whilst adhering to COVID-19 restrictions. We strived to ensure students felt a part of a community at
Surrey and we can look back now on this year and know that we did everything in our power to create a real
student experience.
Freshers’ Week
Against the odds we provided a combination of in-person and online Freshers’ experiences for the incoming
cohort. Armed with around 140 willing volunteers the Moving-In operation ran smoother than ever, with arrivals
sticking strictly to their time slots which were more evenly spread over the weekend.
Whilst the Freshers’ Angels and Super Angels were instructed not to physically help move belongings they
were a great reassuring and supportive energy to students and parents arriving on campus for the first time.
This was especially important at a time of uncertainty and additional worry, and their presence was greatly
received.
A sample of the feedback we received “My wife and I want to thank all of the staff and students who made moving our daughter into the Stag Hill
residences such a pleasant and easy task. The organisation was faultless, the students helping out were very
friendly and everyone we met went “the extra mile” to help out”
“Our daughter moved into University today and we were very impressed by the arrangements on campus of
the Welcome staff , they were enthusiastically (all of them) waving saying hello directing us to where we
needed to go.”
“We would like to thank everyone for making us feel so welcome yesterday! On arrival it was great to receive
such friendly greetings and waves from the yellow shirts! We were impressed with how all was so organised
with the car windscreen hangers and parking. Clear directions were given.”
“You made us feel very welcome especially during these strange Co-vid times where it was reassuring to see
that life at the University of Surrey has not stopped, but people have stepped up to the challenge and really
well organised a crucial day in the life of our son.”
A socially distanced Freshers’ Fair was held in The Marquee. The majority of other Universities only had a
virtual Freshers’ Fair, however we rose to the challenge and managed to successfully hold both a physical
and online Fair. In-person stalls were distanced with a one system in place and students signed up for a free
ticketed time slot online. Numbers were limited so the only impact was that only first years could attend.
Overall, feedback was that students had a better experience as the Fair was less crowded and it was easier
to see everything properly and talk to people. We have learnt from this experience and in future will continue
with ticketed timeslots and a one way system. We also used QR codes and went paperless to avoid handouts
for COVID-19 reasons, however we will also continue to do this is future to save wasting paper.
Due to restrictions we were unable to open Rubix as a nightclub, however again we faced this challenge head
on and delivered a COVID-19 secure outdoor event by The Lake. A big screen and stage showed
entertainment including DJ’s, films, live music and performances. There were 100 picnic benches for students
to sit in groups of 6 and food and drinks could be ordered via an app. This was hugely successful and provided
students with a place to socialise. The lake was enjoyed so much we would like to do something similar in
future as it provides an alternative to clubbing.
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Rubix / The Marquee
Following on from a successful COVID-19 safe Freshers’ Week and restrictions not allowing clubs to re-open
for the foreseeable future, we transformed Rubix into a Lounge. We put pool tables by Hari’s Bar, and created
a ‘speakeasy’ style décor on the dancefloor, including extra sofas on the balcony. Lord Falafel also provided
a food service.
The seated capacity of Rubix was limited to approx. 250 which unfortunately wasn’t big enough for the number
of students still wishing to socialise and it was full almost every night. The University recognised this and
supported us to turn The Marquee into a COVID-19 safe event space. We moved the picnic benches, bar,
screen, décor from the lake into the marquee and it was immediately hugely popular. It did have to shut for a
number of months between November 2020 and April 2021 due to another lockdown, however it has been a
very popular beer garden from mid-April until July 2021.
We switched to a better app (Served Up) allowing much quicker speed of service and had visiting food traders
each week. It was so popular we had to buy more picnic benches, increasing the capacity to over 800 making
it the biggest COVID-19 secure events space in the country. After term ended, we kept The Marquee open for
a number of students still in Guildford and fortunately showing the Euros worked in our favour. The Marquee
closed as an entertainment venue at the beginning of July so it could be set up for Graduations.
We had planned to open Rubix on the 21st June, the initial planned reopening date of nightclubs, however
that was delayed by the government, and we regrettably refunded all tickets. Rubix opening on the 19th July
for the second week of Graduations and our biggest Grad Ball ever, taking place on the 23rd July 2021. Our
first big unrestricted event in 18 months.
Showcase and Cultural Events
In addition to social events we were also able to host a number of key Union and society events in The
Marquee. One World Gala was able to take place without an audience and was livestreamed. One World
Fashion Show was introduced too and the participating societies had a chance to show off their traditional
dress and the fashion society commentated. Over the last few weeks Holi Ball, Hellenic Night, Bhangra Night
and Spanish Night were also held in The Marquee.
Union and Colours Balls were combined into one event and all nominees and their guests were invited to
attend an awards ceremony in the Marquee. Winners collected their awards in person and the ceremony was
also livestreamed.
A manifesto pledge of VP Community was to create a ‘UniVision Song Contest’, to bring together musicians
from across UK universities to compete in a Eurovision-style event. The event was organised by a large team
of staff and students, including the University’s music and media students who used their work on the show
for practical assignments. The live finale was a great success, with Alys from ACM being announced as the
winner. A playback of the show is available at www.univison.show.
VP Community also organised PrideFest in The Marquee for LGBT+ Pride Month, including performances
from local drag queen, Tiana Biscuit and Community Zone-elect member KJ Acolina. During the periods that
physical events weren’t allowed we continued to Livestream the weekly quiz to keep students engaged and
we streamed a special Glitterbomb night for LGBT+ history month.
Over the Christmas period loneliness was a huge concern to the Zone, especially as many students were not
able to travel home and shops and services were closed because of lockdown. Supported by the University,
we were able to open The Marquee on Christmas Day and Boxing Day and provide a free meal and a free
movie to those in need. VP Community also created a calendar of events occurring during the University
vacation period, to keep students’ entertained.
Following on from Christmas we supported students on campus by serving over 300 free meals from Youngs
Kitchen for Lunar New Year. This included a DIY dumpling kit to encourage students to do something
interactive, and to enjoy with their household.
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Volunteering
Despite the restrictions imposed on students, they still found many ways to engage with volunteering whilst at
home or online. Here are some of the highlights:
72 opportunities applied for
By 976 student volunteers
Who logged 14594 hours of volunteering
We have reached a record number of volunteers registered on the system at 3841; of which 953 joined this
year.
We now have 267 partners on the system which splits into 142 charity/non-profit and 125 Socs/Clubs all using
the platform to create opportunities or log hours.
Volunteering at Surrey has a vast reach which can take students to Borneo or the Amazon to do conservation
volunteering, to a local charity shop to help out The Red Cross, through to Stewarding at Festivals for Marie
Curie, mentoring, buddy schemes for the elderly and able bodied and social media marketing volunteers.
772 students volunteered directly for opportunities posted by us as a Union which included Freshers’ Angels,
Course Reps, Welfare Watch, campus litter picks and the incredible 205 students who became Self-Isolation
Buddies since lockdown began.
COVID-19 Volunteering March to June
At the start of the first lockdown we partnered with Surrey County Council and Voluntary Action South West
Surrey to provide 30+ students to support services and voluntary organisations across the county/regionally
which ranged from helping at a walk-in centre for the homeless in a kitchen in Farnham, to the emergency
response and support of Royal Surrey Hospital.
One student even did 280hrs of volunteering assisting their local Citizens Advice Bureau in Southend,
meanwhile one of our incoming Sabbs has done 114 hours for Guildford’s Citizen Advice Bureau.
We created a cross department opportunity called ‘Self-Isolation Buddies’. Student volunteers ‘buddied up’
with students who were self-isolating. The ‘Buddies’ delivered shopping or offered any other help with errands
etc. that the people in isolation needed. The success of this scheme and take up meant we had universities
across the country contacting us to ask for advice about how we did it and how we have developed such an
engaged student volunteering audience.
Duke of Edinburgh Awards
The Duke of Edinburgh Awards scheme is a world-renowned volunteer programme for young adults all the
way up to 25yrs of age. We have been seeing a steady rise in participants since we started to slowly grow this
aspect of our volunteering programme. This year we are proud to report that we have become the first
Union/University to help one of our students become a DofE Ambassador. This student will now work with us
to lead the DofE programme including leading expeditions with the participants in the award scheme. We are
looking forward to helping our student ambassador continue to grow the DofE function here and enable more
students to get involved with a peer-to-peer student-led approach.
RAG
To ensure we are supporting local initiatives, the RAG Chair wrote a motion which was passed by the Union
Executive, and from 2021/22, at least one of the two RAG charities we fundraise for will be a local charity.
Here are some of their highlights from this year:
Following the explosion in Beirut, Lebanon, in August 2020, RAG fundraised over £1000 for the Lebanon Red
Cross thanks to generous student donations.
In November 2020 the RAG Chair and other Union officers supported Surrey Movember and helped raise an
amazing £11,490.47 for the Movember charity.
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A successful RAG Week was held in May 2021 and despite COVID-19 restrictions, £1180 was raised.
A special fundraising event ‘Sounds of Summer’ was organised in The Marquee by events management
students and sponsored by Future Generations.
Drug Education and Harm Reduction
In December, the VP Community wrote the ‘Student Drug Use Report 2020’, analysing survey results gathered
by herself and the VP Activity in the months prior. Following this, the VP Community also wrote a new ‘Student
Drug Use Policy’ for the Students’ Union which was passed by the Board of Trustees, starting a SSDP
(Students for Sensible Drug Policy) group at Surrey. They have also worked with the University and external
organisation, NeuroSight, on a harm reduction campaign.
Zone Activity and Achievements
A Zone Committee Members have been active despite the restrictions and have achieved the followingThey have created the monthly ‘Citizenship Award’ to celebrate students doing good for the community, such
as volunteering and charity work.
There is now an additional volunteering initiative for students - The Events Network which will expand on our
existing work by further promoting the core components of our Zone (Raising and Giving; Volunteering;
community engagement). Volunteers will organise and support student events.
They voiced the concerns of students and initiated conversations with the University about an international
guarantor scheme.
Sustainability
A sustainability policy for the Union was passed and implemented this year. The VP Community organised
the first ‘Sustainability Forum’ event, providing an opportunity for students and staff to directly share ideas,
concerns or questions surrounding sustainability at Surrey with relevant staff members.
A ‘Sustainability Week’ was also organised, with content including: a litter pick on campus; guest speakers;
and Instagram live discussions with students and organisations.
A Community Zone member, led on the Union’s ‘Sustainable Surrey’ campaign and organised engaging
Instagram live events, contributed strongly to University meetings, and organised much of the sustainability
week. Towards the end of the year, the VP Community and the Zone Member worked with the University to
pilot a food waste app called Olio, in catering outlets on campus.
The VP Community has also introduced a new role to club and society committees, the ‘Sustainability Rep’.
This role will provide guidance to members on how to reduce our impact on the environment through society
and club activity.
A Christmas Tree decorating competition was also held called ‘SustainabiliTREE’ to encourage students to
make a Christmas tree out of waste such as used bottles or cans.
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Fundraising
The Union itself had no fundraising activities requiring disclosure under S162A of the Charities Act 2011.
Future Plans
In the last three years, the Students’ Union and the environment in which it operates has seen a tremendous
amount of change. A change of direction and democratic structure for the Union and new senior management
in many positions at the University. USSU will continue with its core functions of representation and provision
of student activities for the foreseeable future.
The strategy agreed by members in February 2017 is now embedded within the Union structure and will be in
place until the end of 2022. Further quantitative survey work will be undertaken to understand and measure
member satisfaction. USSU will continue its association with almost all external bodies (BUCS, IIV, BII, etc.),
unless a popular vote from members deems this unsatisfactory.
Financial review
USSU has continued to benefit from the recognition and support of the University, and this year received an
annual Block Grant of £1,217,650.
Due to the impact of Covid, the decision was taken to Furlough full time staff when we could, to ensure that
the Union could still operate its core activities over the year. Due to the usage of this scheme, the Union was
able to benefit from Furlough payments equating to £280,126.
The usual course of Union income is generated from Rubix nightclub; due to Covid impact this ceased to be
generated. However, with the extra grant of £142,596 from the University for us to create student space in the
marquee we have been able to give the 20/21 students a student experience. The Union has also received a
£18,241 grant from Guildford county council and a Donation of £48,973.
Reserves Policy
The Board of Trustees reviews the Student Unions’ Reserve Policy annually. This year due to Coronavirus,
the reserves policy will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, with specific regard to retained levels. The Board of
Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of reserves should be £300,000 cash (which is
approximately 3 months salaries), however this will face further ongoing review. The reason for this reserve is
to provide enough working capital and to deal with unexpected emergencies. In future years capital
maintenance and development projects may be considered in the reserves policy review, alongside the
financial impact of Coronavirus.
After deducting the carrying value of tangible fixed assets held for the Student Union’s own use there were
free reserves as defined by the Charity Commission of £497,102 (2020: £467,832).
The Students’ Union cash reserves as at 31 July 2020 were £586,496. The cash reserve as at the 31 July
2021 is £682,483 (an increase of £95,987).
The key management personnel understand that the Students’ Union needs to maintain an appropriate level
of reserves, in order to provide sufficient capital to cover delays which can occur between spending and receipt
of income.
Custodian Activities: Clubs’ & Societies’ Funds
USSU acts as custodian for funds raised by the students’ amounting to £171,105 at 31 July 2021. £232,738
paid in and £206,526 paid out of the clubs and societies own funds; made up of a total of 8151 transactions
for the year. These funds are represented in the financial accounts system under separate Restricted Income
Fund cost codes so Clubs’ & Societies balances are known at all times.
In addition to the grant-support funds it disburses to them, as shown in the accounts, USSU is also custodian
of the annual RAG proceeds from fundraising events organised by the students under USSU auspices for
distribution to the intended charities.
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of University of Surrey Students’ Union for the year ended 31
July 2021 which comprise the Group Statement of Financial Activities, the Group and Company Balance
Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the charitable company’s affairs as at 31
July 2021 and of the group’s incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure for the year then ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
group and charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and the charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit


the information given in the trustees’ report, which includes the directors’ report prepared for the
purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and



the directors’ report included within the trustees’ report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and charitable company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report
included within the trustees’ report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:


adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept; or



the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or



certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or



we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement on page 22 the trustees (who are also
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group’s or the
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate
the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.
Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We identified and
assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements from irregularities, whether due to
fraud or error, and discussed these between our audit team members. We then designed and performed
audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the group and the
charitable company operates, focusing on those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The laws and regulations
we considered in this context were the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 2011 together with the
Charities SORP (FRS 102). We assessed the required compliance with these laws and regulations as part
of our audit procedures on the related financial statement items.
In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the
financial statements but compliance with which might be fundamental to the group or charitable company’s
ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. We also considered the opportunities and incentives that
may exist within the group or charitable company for fraud. The laws and regulations we considered in this
context were General Data Protecting Regulations, Health and Safety and Safeguarding of students.
Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the Trustees and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any.
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We identified the greatest risk of material impact on the financial statements from irregularities, including fraud,
to be within the timing of recognition of income and the override of controls by management. Our audit
procedures to respond to these risks included enquiries of management, and the Trustee Committee about
their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities, sample testing on the posting of journals
and income, reviewing accounting estimates for biases, reviewing regulatory correspondence with the Charity
Commission, and reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations (irregularities) is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it. In addition, as with any
audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. We are not responsible for
preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company’s members and trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, the charitable company’s members as a body and
the charitable company’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Alastair Lyon
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of
Crowe U.K. LLP
Statutory Auditor
Reading
Dated :

27 October 2021
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR
(Incorporating income and expenditure account)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

Notes

Gross Income
Donations:
- Donations, University Grant, etc.
Income from other trading activities
- Activity
- Central
- Community

3

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Funds
£

Total
2021
£

Total
2020
£

1,707,586

-

1,707,586

1,353,846

2,613
36,716
58,612

-

2,613
36,716
58,612

19,262
28,885
129,725

756,694

232,738
-

232,738
756,694

670,938
45,712
824,714

2,562,221

232,738

2,794,959

3,073,082

324,992
251,464
1,464,690
278,308
262,945

206,526
-

531,518
251,464
1,464,690
278,308
262,945

1,087,755
372,078
1,068,272
279,327
255,104

2,582,399

206,526

2,788,925

3,062,536

Net Movement in funds

(20,178)

26,212

6,034

10,546

Fund balances brought forward

676,839

144,893

821,732

811,186

656,661

171,105

827,766

821,732

Charitable activities for students:
- Activity
- Central
- Community

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities for students:
- Activity
- Central
- Community
- Support
- Voice

4

Fund balances carried forward

14

The notes on pages 31 to 40 form part of these accounts.
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Notes
Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets

£

2021

7

£

£

2020

£

209,007

159,559

209,007

Current Assets
Stocks
Debtors & prepayments
Cash at bank & in hand
Current Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts due within one
year

9
10

56,893
189,782
682,483
929,158

33,916
192,876
586,496
813,288

11

(260,951)

(200,563)

Net Current Assets

668,207

612,725

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

827,766

821,732

Representing Charitable Funds:Restricted Income Funds
Students' Societies & Club Funds

12

Unrestricted Income Funds
Undesignated

171,105

144,893

656,661

676,839
676,839

Total Funds

14

827,766

821,732

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees on 27 October 2021 and signed on their behalf, by:

President

��r
Trustee: Ajisola Ajimobi

The notes on pages 31 to 40 form part of these accounts.
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UNION BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 JULY 2021
REGISTERED COMPANY NUMBER: 07470232

Notes
Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

£

2021

7
8

Current Assets
Debtors & prepayments
Cash at bank & in hand

10

Current Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts due within one
year

11

£

£

2020

159,559
1

209,007
1

159,560

209,008

717,933
347,109

410,800
280,978

1,065,042

691,778

(188,490)

(188,015)

Net Current Assets
Total Assets less Current Liabilities

£

876,552

503,763

1,036,112

712,771

Representing Charitable Funds:Restricted Income Funds
Students' Societies & Club Funds

12

Unrestricted Income Funds
Free reserves (Undesignated)
Total Funds

171,105

865,007
14

171,105

865,007

144,893

567,878

1,036,112

144,893

567,878
712,771

The result for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was £323,341
(2020: £199,771).
The financial statements were approved by the Trustees on 27 October 2021 and signed on their behalf,
by:
President and Chair
Trustee: Ajisola Ajimobi

The notes on pages 31 to 40 form part of these accounts
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

2021
£

2020
£

Cash flows from operating activities:
6,034
49,448
7,813
(37)
(22,977)
3,094
60,388

Net incoming resources
Depreciation
Interest paid
Interest received
(Increase) in stock
Decrease/ (Increase) in debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors
Net cash used in operating activities

103,763

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receivable
Interest payable
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

(6,517)

37
(7,813)
-

Net cash used in investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

10,546
80,882
6,378
(596)
(8,369)
(6,528)
(88,830)

596
(6,378)
(72,017)

(7,776)
£

95,987

(77,799))
£

(84,316)

Net debt reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in
net debt
Net funds at 1st August
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year
Net funds at 31st July

586,496
95,987

670,812
(84,316)

£

682,483

£

586,496

£

682,483

£

586,496

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

The notes on pages 31 to 40 form part of these accounts
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1

Accounting Policies
The University of Surrey Students’ union is an incorporated charity registered in the UK
(Charity number 1142479. Company Number: 07470232) with its registered office at Union
House, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 7XH.
The Principal activities are campaigning, representation, provision of social activities and the
organisation of sporting and recreational activities and opportunities.
(a)

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting
by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective January 2015) – (Charities SORP (FRS102)), the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the
Companies Act 2006.
The Union meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. Assets and Liabilities
are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the
relevant accounting policy note.
Consolidated financial statements (‘group accounts”) have been prepared in respect of the
charity and its wholly owned subsidiary, Origin Events Limited. The parent has taken
exemption from presenting its unconsolidated profit and loss account under section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 and as permitted by FRS 102. Assets and liabilities are initially
recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant
accounting policy note.

(b)

Going concern
The charity has cash resources and is supported by the University of Surrey. Having reviewed
budgets, forecasts and cash-flows, and taken into account Covid19, the trustees have a
reasonable expectation that the Charity has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. They continue to believe the going concern basis of
accounting appropriate in preparing the annual financial statements.

(c)

Incoming resources
All income including grants and capital resources are recognised in the accounts when the
Charity is legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable
certainty, and on an accruals basis.
During the year the Union received £280k (2020: £126K) from the UK Government under the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme.

(d)

Resources expended
Expenditure is accrued as soon as a liability is considered probable, discounted to present
value for longer term liabilities. Expenditure includes irrecoverable VAT. Charitable
expenditure comprises the direct and indirect costs of delivering public benefit. Other central
overhead costs are apportioned to charitable and other projects/activities on a usage basis,
pro rata to the amount of staff hours attributable to each project or activity undertaken.
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1

Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Equipment, fixtures and fittings
are included at cost. Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write
the cost of assets off over their estimated useful lives.
Fixtures and Fittings
Equipment
Computer Hardware
Computer Software

-

10%
10-33%
20-50%
20-33%

per annum straight line
per annum straight line
per annum straight line
per annum straight line

(f)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and cash equivalents includes cash and short term highly liquid investments
with a short maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit
or similar account.

(g)

Pension costs
The Union now operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge
represents the amounts payable by the company to the fund in respect of the year. Differences
between contributions payable in the year and paid are shown as accruals or prepayments in
the balance sheet.

(h)

Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as expenditure on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease

(i)

Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of the cost and its net realisable value.

(j)

Fund accounting
(i)

Unrestricted Funds representing unspent income which may be used for any
activity/purpose at the Executive Committee’s own discretion;

(ii)

Capital Grant Funds are released annually in line with the depreciation policy on the
capital spend.

(iii)

Restricted funds raised and administered by USSU for specific purposes, such as
Club and Societies Accounts, as well as revenue received for purposes specified by
the donor. The costs of raising and administering such funds are charged against the
specific fund.

(k)

Taxation
The Union meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Union is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or
gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

(l)

Financial instruments
Basic financial instruments include debtors and creditors. Debtors and creditors are initially
recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Note 15
provides more information on financial instruments where future cash flows are anticipated,
with financial assets referring to trade debtors, amount owed by group undertakings, other
debtors and cash equivalents, and financial liabilities referring to all creditor balances
excluding deferred income and payments on account.
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2.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements and estimates.
The directors consider that there are no material judgements in applying accounting policies or key
sources of estimation uncertainty.

3

4a)

Grants Receivable and donations
2021
£

2020
£

University Block Grant (Subvention)
CJRS Grant
Additional University Grant
Local Council Grants
Donations

1,217,650
280,126
142,596
18,241
48,973

1,228,217
125,629
-

Total

1,707,586

1,353,846

Charitable and other Activity costs- 2021
Cost of
sales
£

Staff costs
£

Rent
£

Other
costs
£

Charitable activities
Activity
Central
Community
Support
Voice

325,376
-

197,781
158,035
476,538
226,200
212,770

20,004
10,509
40,000
20,004
20,004

313,733
82,920
622,776
32,104
30,171

531,518
251,464
1,464,690
278,308
262,945

Total costs

325,376

1,271,324

110,521

1,081,704

2,788,925

Total
£

Included in the above costs is the annual audit fee of £15,875 (2020: £15,275).
Affiliation fees included in the above amounts to £nil (2020: £nil)
2020 Comparative information- Charitable and other Activity costs
Other costs

Cost of sales
£

Staff costs
£

Rent
£

£

Total
£

Charitable activities
Activity
Central
Community
Support
Voice

38,294
295,026
-

189,939
247,327
376,480
211,599
179,791

24,000
(1,471)
40,000
24,000
24,000

873,816
87,928
356,766
43,728
51,313

1,087,755
372,078
1,068,272
279,327
255,104

Total costs

333,320

1,205,136

110,529

1,413,551

3,062,536

Included in the above costs is the annual audit fee of £15,275 (2020: £14,835).
Affiliation fees included in the above amounts to £nil (2020: £nil).
Page 33

UNIVERSITY OF SURREY STUDENTS’ UNION
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

4b)

Central Overhead Costs included in Note 4a
All central overhead costs have been apportioned on a usage basis, pro rata to the total costs of each
project or activity undertaken as per the below breakdown.
Overheads used evenly by all zones represent the following cost:
2021
Usage
Charitable activities
Central
Voice
Activity
Support
Community
Total costs

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
100%

2020 Comparative information
Usage
Charitable activities
Central
Voice
Activity
Support
Community
Total costs

5

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
100%

Staff
£

Other
£

Total
£

57,028
57,028
57,028
57,028
57,028

15,226
15,226
15,226
15,226
15,226

72,254
72,254
72,254
72,254
72,254

285,140

76,130

361,270

Staff
£

Other
£

Total
£

70,125
70,125
70,125
70,125
70,125

16,739
16,739
16,739
16,739
16,739

86,864
86,864
86,864
86,864
86,864

350,625

83,695

434,320

Staff Costs
2021
£

Wages and salaries
Social security
Pension costs

2020
£

1,120,748
89,169
61,407

1,073,380
72,790
58,966

1,271,324

1,205,136

One (2020: one) employee earned between £60,000 - £70,000 per annum. Defined contribution
pension scheme costs for this employee amounted to £7,442 for the year to 31 July 2021 (2020:
£11,904).
The key management personnel of the Union compromise the Trustees, the Chief Executive Officer,
the Deputy CEO and the Human Resources and Staff Development manager. The aggregate
employee benefits of key management personnel was £326,521 (2020: £332,701).
The average staffing was as follows:Full time
Students – term time only

27
143

27
79

170

105

Redundancy payments of £19,099 (2020: £nil) were made during the year.
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6

Trustees’ Remuneration and Expenses
Trustees received total remuneration of £109,874 (2020: £105,386). This related to the 5 Sabbatical
Officers as noted on page 1. Reimbursed expenses to Trustees totalled £nil (2020: £nil.)

7

Tangible Fixed Assets – Group and Union
Fixtures &
fittings
£

Equipment
£

Computer
Hardware
£

Computer
Software
£

Total
£

COST

At 1 August 2020
Additions

859,950
-

115,881
-

135,307
-

91,804
-

1,202,942
-

At 31 July 2021

859,950

115,881

135,307

91,804

1,202,942

DEPRECIATION
At 1 August 2020
Charge for the year

769,257
19,635

24,566
16,520

115,496
6,744

84,616
6,549

993,935
49,448

At 31 July 2021

788,892

41,086

122,240

91,165

1,043,383

At 31 July 2021

71,058

74,795

13,067

639

159,559

At 1 August 2020

66,087

91,315

44,417

7,188

209,007

NET BOOK VALUE

8

Investments
Group
£

Union
£

COST:
1 August 2020
Disposals

-

1
-

At 31 July 2021

-

1

During the year the Union held investments in the following companies which are incorporated in
the United Kingdom.
Name of Company
Origin Events Limited

Main Trading Activity
Bar and shop trading

Equity Held
100.00%

Origin Events Limited (Registered number) 5048518 a fully owned subsidiary has net liabilities as at
31 July 2021 of (£208,342) (2020: net assets £108,962). Income of £997,678 (2020: £978,440) and
Expenditure of £1,206,021 (2020: 869,479) and a (loss)/profit of (£208,343) (2020: £108,961).
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9

Stock
2021
Group
£

Finished Goods

10

2020
Union
£

56,893

Group
£
-

Union
£

33,916

Debtors
2021
Group
£

Trade debtors
Amounts owed by group
undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued
income

11

2020
Union
£

Group
£

Union
£

66,520

49,222

55,252

17,331

39,828

581,617
3,660

64

256,870
64

83,434

83,434

137,560

136,535

189,782

717,933

192,876

410,800

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2021
Group
£

Trade creditors
Social security & other taxes
Other creditors
Accruals

12

-

2020
Union
£

Group
£

Union
£

170,687
33,988
5,064
51,212

106,186
33,988
5,064
43,252

110,702
19,370
2,877
67,614

106,917
19,370
2,877
58,851

260,951

188,490

200,563

188,015

Restricted Funds held for Student Societies & Clubs – Group and Union
£

Funds held at 1 August 2020
Income
Expenditure

144,893
232,738
(206,526)

Funds held at 31 July 2021

171,105

Restricted funds represent amounts raised by the Student Societies and Clubs of the Union for their
own use.
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13

Capital Grant Fund – Group and Union
2021
£

2020
£

Funds held at 1 August 2020
Transfers to unrestricted funds

-

Funds held at 31 July 2021

-

3,000
(3,000)
-

This Fund represents capital grant funds received from the University. It is amortised to unrestricted
funds over the life of the assets in line with the Unions’ depreciation policy on the assets.
14

Analysis of Net Assets between Funds 2021

Group

Fixed assets
Net current assets

Union

Fixed assets
Net current assets

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Income
Funds
£

Total
£

159,559
497,102

171,105

159,559
668,207

656,661

171,105

827,766

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Income
Funds
£

Total
£

159,560
705,447

171,105

159,560
876,552

865,007

171,105

1,036,112

Prior Year Comparative Analysis of Net Assets between Funds 2020

Group
Fixed assets
Net current assets

Union
Fixed assets
Net current assets

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Income
Funds
£

Total
£

209,007
467,832

144,893

209,007
612,725

676,839

144,893

821,732

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Income
Funds
£

Total
£

209,008
358,870

144,893

209,008
503,763

567,878

144,893

712,771
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Financial Instruments
2021
£

2020
£

Group

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

803,836
(226,963)

691,812
(181,193)

The group’s income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarised below:
2021
£
Interest income and expense:
Total interest income for financial assets held at amortised costs
Total interest expense for financial liabilities held at
amortised cost

2020
£

37
(7,813)

2021
£

596
(6,378)

2020
£

Charity

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

996,613
(154,502)

605,243
(168,645)

The charity’s income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarised below:
2021
£
Interest income and expense:
Total interest income for financial assets held at amortised costs
Total interest expense for financial liabilities held at amortised
cost

2020
£
37

(7,813)

596
(6,378)

Financial instruments held at amortised cost are trade debtors, intercompany, other debtors, cash at bank,
trade creditors, accruals and other creditors. They exclude prepayments and other taxes and social security.
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16

Leasing Commitments – Group and Union
At 31 July 2021 the Union had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating
detailed below:
2021
£
Plant and machinery
Operating leases expiring within one year
109,438
Operating leases expiring within one to two years
100,000
Operating leases expiring within two to five years
147,222
Operating leases expiring greater than five years
-

17

leases as
2020
£
154,599
122,810
248,611
-

Control Relationship
Ultimate control of the University of Surrey Students’ Union rests with its membership, represented by
the Union Trustee board.

18

Related Parties
The Union is in receipt of a recurrent grant from the University of Surrey of £1,217,650 (2020:
£1,228,217) and, a one off additional grant this year of £142,596 (2020: £nil). The year end net
balance owed to University was (£35,374) (2020: £4,503 owed from). The sabbatical members of
the executive committee receive remuneration for their services as provided for within the
Constitution. The aggregate amount payable under such contracts in the year was £109,874 (2020:
£105,386).
Origin Events Limited is considered to be a related party of the Union as it is a wholly owned
subsidiary. The company made a payment under gift aid to the Union of £108,961 during the year
(2020: £298,115). A recharge of £60,000 (2020: £60,000) to Origin Events Limited for use of fixed
assets is included within these figures. The intercompany balance due from the company to the
Union at the year-end was £581,617 (2020: £256,870). The year end net balance owed from the
University was £9,313.

19

Pension Costs
In 2011 the Union moved from a defined benefit to a defined contribution retirements benefit
scheme. As part of the arrangement, the liability for deficits relating to past service of TUPE
employees remained with the University. The Union pays contributions for TUPE employees at a
rate of 16% of pensionable salary for former members of USS and 16.4% for former members of
LGPS. The pension contribution rate for staff commencing employment after 1st August 2011 is 4%
and the rate for those on the auto enrolment scheme is 3%. The total pension cost for the year was
£61,407 (2020: £58,966).

Page 39

UNIVERSITY OF SURREY STUDENTS’ UNION
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021

20

Prior year comparatives
Unrestricted
Funds
£

Gross Income
Donations:
- Donations, University Grant, etc.
Income from other trading activities
- Activity
- Central
- Community
Charitable activities for students:
- Activity
- Central
- Community

Capital
Grants
£

Total
2020
£

1,353,846

-

-

1,353,846

19,262
28,885
129,725

-

-

19,262
28,885
129,725

3,156
45,712
824,714

667,782
-

-

670,938
45,712
824,714

-

3,073,082

2,405,300
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities for students:
- Activity
- Central
- Community
- Support
- Voice

Restricted
Funds
£

667,782

427,028
372,078
1,068,272
279,327
255,104

660,727
-

-

1,807,755
372,078
1,068,272
279,327
255,104

2,401,809

660,727

-

3,062,536

Net income

3,491

7,055

-

10,546

Transfer between funds

3,000

-

(3,000)

-

Net Movement in funds

6,491

7,055

(3,000)

10,546

Fund balances brought forward

670,348

137,838

3,000

811,186

Fund balances carried forward

676,839

144,893

-

821,732
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Voice
Subvention

Activity
275,100

Subvention
Minibus income

Liberation (santander)

Support
369,100

Subvention

Community
298,700

Subvention

Central
59,250

Bar

800,000

Ents
Cloakroom
Tech

550,000
10,000
25,000

389,100

Minibus

298,700

1,444,250

200,000
90,000
0
290,000

80,000
110,000
0
190,000

100,000
10,000
1,000
3,500
3,000
9,000
1,500
5,000
2,000
1,000
4,000
50,000
2,000
10,000
5,000
20,000
5,000
2,000
1,000
500
6,000
50,000
291,500

100,000
8,000
1,000
3,500
3,000
9,000
1,500
5,000
2,000
1,000
4,000
40,000
2,000
0
5,000
20,000
5,000
500
1,000
500
6,000
25,000
243,000

0
2,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
10,000
0
10,000
0
0
0
1,500
0
0
0
25,000
48,500

34,000
23,600
5,000
500
7,000
60,000
18,000
1,500
70,000
8,050
102,500
17,000
20,000
500
90,000
20,000
20,000
19,000
36,000
500
10,000
0
3,000
2,500
8,000
5,000
19,000
30,000
630,650

26,000
23,600
5,000
500
5,000
60,000
15,000
1,500
84,000
7,550
111,500
16,000
20,000
500
60,000
10,000
15,000
10,000
30,000
100
8,000
0
3,000
2,000
0
3,000
10,000
5,000
532,250

8,000
0
0
0
2,000
0
3,000
0
-14,000
500
-9,000
1,000
0
0
30,000
10,000
5,000
9,000
6,000
400
2,000
0
0
500
8,000
2,000
9,000
25,000
98,400

121,000
312,000
609,600
150,000
40,000
1,232,600
0
0

110,000
284,500
586,000
110,000
25,000
1,115,500
33,500

11,000
27,500
23,600
40,000
15,000
117,100
-33,500

280,000
200,000

100,000

10,000

Academic Rep

3,000

Liberation

1,500
Training

Nightline

Societies
Committee Training

10,000
24,500
1,000
4,000
100

Zone

Sabb training
Marketing/Comms
Sabb Clothing

International events

3,500

Varsity

9,000

Ext Trustee Exp

1,000

Legal fees

2,000

5,000
Welfare watch

Sabb Clothing

0

280,000
200,000
0
480,000

Marketing
Rentals

480,000

Sabb training
Marketing/Comms

-48,500
0
-10,000
170,000
0
350,000
5,000
25,000
5,000
-9,000
487,500

20,000

Bar COS
Ents COS
Tech

Zone

2021/22
1,217,650
100
30,000
630,000
1,500
200,000
5,000
0
35,000
28,000
2,147,250

167,000
100

1,500

276,600

Elections

40,000
19,000
226,100

2022/23
1,169,150
100
20,000
800,000
1,500
550,000
10,000
25,000
40,000
19,000
2,634,750

Subvention
Bank Interest

1,000
Volunteering /Rag
Freshers' Week

4,000
50,000

Free Fest
Colours Ball

10,000
5,000

2,000

20,000
Student Awards

5,000

Street Marshalls

1,000

2,000

10,000
137,000
1,000
4,000

Insurance
Utility
Staff Expenses

10,000
3,000
300

Insurance
Utility
Staff Expenses

100
0
10,000
3,000
300

Telephone
Rent
Audit fees
IT

1,500
20,000
2,000
4,000

Telephone
Rent
Audit fees
IT

1,500
20,000
2,000
4,000

Zone

Sabb training
Marketing/Comms
Sabb Clothing
Insurance
Utility
Staff Expenses
`
Telephone
Rent
Audit fees
IT

10,000
13,000
1,000
4,000
100
10,000
3,000
300
1,500
20,000
2,000
4,000

Zone

Sabb training
Marketing/Comms
Sabb Clothing
Insurance
Utility
Staff Expenses
Depreciation
Telephone
Rent
Audit fees
IT
Licences
Door Staff
PRS
On line tickets
First Aid
Card Portal Charges
Ullage
Tills

10,000
97,500
1,000
4,000
100
20,000
6,000
300
50,000
1,550
40,000
8,000
4,000
500
90,000
20,000
20,000
19,000
36,000
500
10,000

conferences
Subscriptions
Zone

500
6,000
10,000
19,500

HR/Payroll
Marketing/Comms
Bank Charges
Sabb Clothing
Alterline Pulse
Insurance
Utility
Staff Expenses
Depreciation
Telephones
Rent
Audit fees
IT

30,000
7,600
5,000
100
7,000
10,000
3,000
300
20,000
2,000
2,500
3,000
4,000

0

-

-

45,900
President/VP
Staff /Management
Staff /Zone
P/T Staff
P/T Staff Students Zone

24,200
62,400
114,600
5,000
206,200
0

-

45,900
President/VP
Staff /Management
Staff /Zone
P/T Staff Minibus Tester
P/T Staff Students Zone

Stage crew costs students
Staff Uniforms
Crew safety tra/ILM
Irrecoverable VAT
Tech Operational Supplies
Rubix Operational costs

24,200
62,400
114,600
5,000
206,200
0

45,900
President/VP
Staff /Management
Staff /Zone
P/T Staff
P/T Staff Students Zone

24,200
62,400
148,200
5,000
239,800
0

President/VP
Staff /Management
Staff /Zone
P/T Staff /Comm
P/T Staff Students Zone

3,000
2,000
8,000
5,000
14,000
30,000
392,950
24,200
62,400
232,200
150,000
5,000
473,800
0

Staff Uniforms
Irrecoverable VAT
Operational front room

500

5,000
100,000

President/VP
Staff /Management
Staff /Zone
P/T Staff /Comm
P/T Staff Students Zone

24,200
62,400

20,000
106,600
0

Sports Club and Society Affiliations
Society

Affiliation

Cost/Fee

Stag Radio
Scuba Soc
Stag TV

£96 per annum
£32
£60 per annum

AutiSoc

Student Radio Association
British Sub Aqua Club (BSAC):
National Student Television
Association (NaSTA)
British Dodgeball
United Kingdom-Singapore
Students' Council (UKSSC),
Singapore High Commission
(SHC) & Singapore global
network (SGN).
Institute of Physics
TedX
UCCF (Universities and
Colleges Christian Fellowship)
Enactus UK
United Nations Association –
UK.
Royal College of Midwives
(RCM)
Chinese Students and Scholars
Association in the United
Kingdom (CSSA-UK).
The Federation of Student
Islamic Societies
The National Autistic Society

ChemSoc

The Royal Society of Chemistry

No Fee

EARs

RSGB

£50

Dodgeball
Singapore Society

PhySoc
TedX Society
Christian Union Society
Enactus Society
Model United Nations
MidSoc
Chinese Society

Islamic Society

No Fee
No Fee

No Fee
No Fee
No Fee
No Fee
No Fee
No Fee
No Fee

No Fee
£60

The University of Surrey
Students’ Union

Annual Report
2020-21

Our mission and our purpose is -

“To enrich students’ lives, the
community in which they live
and the University of Surrey by
creating the changes they want and
to enable them to achieve their
ambitions.”

2

3

Introduction
It seems like an inevitable cliché to open our Annual Report

Lizzie Rodulson
Union President
2020-21

Sabbatical Officer Team 2020-21 (l-r):
Theo Donnelly (VP Voice), Maya Altamimi (VP Activity),
Izzy Watkins (VP Community), Lizzie Rodulson (Union
President) and Aaron Seabrook (VP Support)

4
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CENTRAL ZONE
COVID-19 Student Support
This year, COVID-19 Student Support has been at the heart of the Union President’s work, from supporting
individual students with personal circumstances, monitoring constantly changing regulations and lobbying
changes within the University in the best interests of students. The pandemic has changed the face of
the 2020/21 Sabbatical Team’s year however under the President’s leadership they adapted and changed
to ensure that the voice of the students was heard in an extremely challenging time. Examples of studentspecific support included the President running COVID-19 drop-in sessions, following the January Lockdown
announcement, talking to any student who had any worries or concerns and helping them to discover what
the Students’ Union could do to support individual students.
University Academic Safety Net

University Accountability has been at the heart of the Officer Team this academic year and has been integrated
into all conversations and actions on student voice throughout all meetings, discussions, and conversations.
First Offence Warden Fine Removal
At the start of the 2020/21 Academic Year, authorised personnel within the University can impose a level of
discipline on our students which includes the chance to enforce on-the-spot monetary fines. Surrey prides
itself on having a hugely diverse community with students from a variety of different cultures and socioeconomic backgrounds, and our student support needs to reflect this.
On-the-spot monetary fines provide a disproportionate impact of discipline within our student community.
With the potential of £50 fines for students, for some students this represents a small percentage of their
weekly spending, however to some students this can equate to 2 weeks’ worth of shopping.

Following student concern regarding the change in grade averages, after the move to hybrid and fully online
teaching in line with the local and national lockdowns, the Union President worked alongside the University to
instigate a Safety Net Policy for students in line with the 2019/20 academic year. This Safety Net subsequently
meant that a student’s overall mark for the 2020/21 academic year would not be lower than the grade
achieved at the end of Semester 1. This came as a relief to many students who had rising concerns about the
impact COVID-19 would have on their education and reassured many students that the educational impact
that COVID-19 had on them would be effectively minimised.

It is the duty of the University to safeguard our students and ensure that they are healthy, and that means we
must limit significant negative impact, as much as possible.

University Accommodation Rent Rebates

•
•

Alongside the news of local and national lockdowns by the Government in January, the news that students
were unable to return to their student accommodation came as a potentially huge financial burden for many
students, who were concerned they would be paying for University Accommodation that, by law, they were
not allowed to return to. The President initiated frequent and in-depth conversations with the University
emphasising the financial impact this will have on the community, and the unfairness that by following the law,
students are taking the financial impact.
Following successful lobbying and conversations, rent rebates for students in University residences were
introduced from the 4th of January 2021. Students in residences that could not return had the opportunity
to apply to receive 100% of their rent back for the period that they were not on site. This rebate scheme was
agreed to continue until the end of the academic year, providing huge financial support for the Surrey student
community in reflection of the government mandated changes.
University Accountability
Following the University of Surrey’s substantial drop in the NSS and Guardian League Tables, the Students’
Union took student concerns to the University, explaining that their experience had not being suitable or what
students had expected whilst being in Higher Education. A letter from the Students’ Union was produced and
written to Professor Max Lu (Vice Chancellor) asking for an explanation of the drop and the University’s plans
to refocus the student experience.
6

Further exmaples of University accountability this academic year include continuing to lobby the University
to divest from Barclays in line with the Students’ Union standpoint on the matter and querying decisions
regarding tuition fees and not funding PCR tests for students alongside the decision made surrounding hybrid
graduations, just to name a few.

A proposal was accepted and approved to implement the following as a one-year policy change trial:
•
•

The standard position will be that on-the-spot fines will not be issued for 1st offences, with the exception
being those of dangerous actions to the student and others where the severity is reflected in escalation.
Any fines for 1st offences will be suspended and only activated if a panel is convened, except for dangerous
actions
Second offences automatically result in activation of a suspended fine or panel referral
A Communal Living Workshop will be introduced in relace of a first offence warden fine

The Communal Living Workshops were incredibly successful this academic year and there has been agreement
to continue this proposal for future academic years, a huge success.
Launched the Surrey Sabbcast
A new endeavour for the 2020/21 Academic Year was the introduction of the Surrey Sabbcast, a weekly podcast
hosted by the Sabbatical officers (Sabbs). This podcast gave Sabbatical team the opportunity to highlight
specific topics prominent in Higher Education or specifically to Surrey at the time, alongside updating students
about what each Sabbatical officer has been working on and continues to work on, on behalf of students.
Throughout the year, the Sabbs have also had the pleasure of hosting numerous different guests from across
the academic and student community. To name just a few, these sabbcasts included:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Return to Campus Special with Lucy Evans, Deborah Lawson, and Stephen Wells
The Rule of Six Explained with Jim Dickinson from WONKHE
The Race Experience at Surrey with Muse Berhe and Dr Alfred Thumser
Safety Net & Extenuating Circumstances with Adam Child, Cathy Derham and Zoe Wilkes
LGBT+ History Month Special with Michael Hassel and Erin Baker
Colourism Special with Catherine Anyanwu
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Voice Your Opinion Forums

Letter to Matt Hancock regarding COVID-19 Student Blame

Student Voice Forums are a core part of the Students’ Union and ensuring that students have the opportunity to
question senior management and have their voices heard at all levels. With the constantly changing government
regulations, the President introduced the Voice Your Opinion Forums to run between Student Voice Forums.
These forums focused on specific concerns from students, with the relevant members of academic and support
staff from the University present in line with key student concerns. These forums provided a platform for the
student voice to be heard, and additional support to be provided, through an incredibly turbulent year.

Subsequent to the announcement by Matt Hancock (MP) in Semester one that it was believed that young
people were to blame for the increase in a rise in COVID-19 cases in the UK, the President saw the dissatisfaction
expressed by Surrey students and took action in the form of a joint Students’ Union letter from Sabbatical
officers from around the country to Matt Hancock, disagreeing with these claims.

RAG Committee Introduction
As a Students’ Union, Raising and Giving (RAG) should be a staple of our ethos, and everything done to support
it. The Students’ Union have already made huge strides in the development of RAG at Surrey, with the reintroduction of a RAG Chair as a specific Part-Time Community Zone Position and the encouragement of RAG
Reps within our clubs & societies.
The next step is to bring together those reps and students with an interest in RAG and co-ordinate our approach
and activities. This will allow us to raise the profile of RAG both on and off campus, and raise as much money
as possible for the charities that students have voted to support.
This RAG committee would be similar in structure to the Sport & Society Standing in which our RAG Chair
would lead the meeting and all RAG Reps would be invited to attend. This invitation would also be extended
to any students within the Surrey community who have a specific interest in raising and giving and are not
currently involved in a club or society or are individual charity fundraisers themselves. This committee will
commence at the start of the 2021/22 Academic Year.
Part Time Officer Involvement & Awareness
Feedback from part-time officer’s in previous years has outlined that involvement and awareness was limited
in comparison to Sabbatical officers within the team. This year, the President ensured that alongside the
Sabbatical officer introductions at the beginning of their term, part-time officers were also spotlighted to
ensure that students knew who they were. Alongside this, part-time officer ‘wins’ were introduced, so that
specific success stories from individual part-time officers could be celebrated and were not incorporated into
the zone wins that are published, which are naturally linked to the Sabbatical officer who is leading that zone.
Alongside this, the Union President began mandated and regular catch ups between the part-time officers
(PTOs) and key members of the Executive Board. It came to light that Sabbatical officers often had the chance
to question members of the Executive Board on a regular basis however our part-time officers often did not.
The introduction of regular (minimum once per semester) meetings between these two groups meant that
students were able to directly hold senior management to account and subsequently feed responses back to
their peer group. On top of this, if PTOs wanted to focus on a specific topic, chances were organised for the
interested officers to meet with members of staff that were directly involved in areas concerned.
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The letter was sent on behalf of over 30 Students’ Union with close to 40 signatures from different Sabbatical
officers within those charities. The letter demonstrated the power of coming together as a collective of student
representatives and the power that Unions have, to make sure that the Student Voice is heard at government
level, regardless of high-level opinion.
Yearly Standing Motion Report Introduction
Feedback from students this academic year expressed a concern that when motions are passed at committees
such as the executive committee, in previous years there has been limited updates on the status of different
motions and their actions, so the Union President took the initiative to introduce the ‘Yearly Standing Motion
Report’, one which is hoped to continue and roll over year to year.
The report will outline every motion that is currently standing at the Students’ Union. Each action will be listed
and progress on this action and whether it is complete or still in progress will be outlined. This report will
increase the transparency on the workings of the Union and hold officers to account following the mandate
that a motion ensues. At the end of the report each year, a list of actions for each zone will be mandated and
passed over to the next officer team to achieve.
Armed Forces Covenant
A lot of work this year focused on ensuring students from Widening Participation backgrounds had access
to the tailored and sustained support that was required to help them thrive at university; This led to the
signing of the Armed Forces Covenant. The signing of this covenant, following lobbying by the Students’ Union,
represents a commitment that the University makes to ensure that students and staff who have a military
connection are not disadvantaged during their further education journey. This commitment includes including
deployment evidence as valid grounds for EC’s and increased wellbeing support.
Free School Meals & Work within the Community
Following the announcement from the Government that they would not be providing free school meals during
the October half term for those children eligible for free school meals, the Students’ Union and the University
came together to provide free meals for those that need it most at Kings College School in Park Barn. This
collaboration demonstrated the way that the University and the Union can come together to support the local
community and our Guildford residents.
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Miscarriage Policy Introduction

Free Speech

Miscarriage is the most common type of pregnancy loss, affecting 1 in 4 pregnancies and a quarter of a million
people in the United Kingdom each year, yet when you explore many employers’ parental bereavement and
maternity policies, these specifically dictate that they only offer support after 24 weeks. Effectively, support by
many employers exists solely for stillbirths, rather than encompassing miscarriages as well.

ALAN TO WRITE

It is important within institutions that those who have experienced such loss are provided with incremental
support. Support is often suggested for those individuals who have been personally impacted, however, the
partners who have shared in the journey can all but be forgotten about. Ensuring that a support network is
there for the individuals who have suffered such bereavement is imperative, hence the importance of offering
support for partners of individuals who have miscarried. Partners should not need to use sick leave to offer
support through this.
Within its maternity policies the University of Surrey Students’ Union (USSU) have introduced and codified
support for employees should they experience a miscarriage, either directly or as a partner. Pregnant USSU
employees who experience a miscarriage are eligible for 6 weeks fully paid sick leave (once the baby is past 12
weeks’ gestation). USSU employees whose pregnant partners experience a miscarriage are eligible for 3 weeks
fully paid sick leave (once the baby is past 12 weeks’ gestation). None of this support will be included in yearly
sick pay leave allowance to ensure future circumstances are not impacted.
Period Poverty
Period Poverty within the student population has become a key topic among Higher Education Institutions
over the past couple of years and it was vitally important the University of Surrey offered support for those
students who may not be able to afford sanitary products, with this came the launch of the Period Poverty
Initiative at Surrey.
With approval of funding from the University, four different free vend stations will be placed around both
campuses which will offer 24 hours free vend of period products for any student that needs it. These will
always endeavour to be in unisex locations to ensure access for everyone. Alongside this, there will be a
developed project within the HIVE which will offer free period products alongside items to support students
when things may go wrong such as additional underwear.
Following lobbying from the Students’ Union, the University have committed to cover all costs for a 6-month
trial starting in September 2021 which the Union hopes to continue as a long-term project in the future as a
commitment to support our students and their health.
Widening Participation Focus Groups & Report
At Surrey, we are incredibly lucky to have a hugely diverse student community with thousands of students
from different backgrounds, however, this means we have thousands of students with different education and
holistic needs.
The initiative was taken to run a series of focus groups with different widening participation groups (e.g.
commuter students, mature students, LGBT+ Students) to discover more about their experiences, what
they would change and what the future student experience of students like them should look like. These
recommendations were then formulated to offer recommendations to the University to ensure that the best,
tailored and sustained support is offer to all of our students from all different walks of life.

10

11

VOICE ZONE
In a challenging year for student engagement, the Voice Zone has worked closely together to achieve
outcomes for students, despite the difficulties we have all experienced working remotely throughout.

•

Surrey Decides (main election process): Our normal officer elections were postponed due to the pandemic
and took place in late April/early May. Rescheduling the election enabled Surrey to be the only Students’
Union to host an in-person Question Time event, which took place in the Marquee and live online.
Participation in the election reached 71 nominations and a voter turnout of 2257 votes, which compares
favourably across the sector during a difficult year. A full officer team was elected for the academic year
2021-22.
Course Representatives

Black History Month
At the beginning of the year, the Zone worked to coordinate the Student Union’s contribution to Black History
Month alongside staff from the University’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion department. A joint calendar of
events was produced featuring Union societies and University-led events, including an online panel discussion
organised by the VP Voice with participation from for members of the black community representing alumni,
University academic and professional services staff, and featuring the VP Voice 2019-20, Ajay Ajimobi. The
team also produced the content for the Union’s channels on Black History, signposting members to further
reading.
A New Liberation Network
The VP Voice led discussions within the Union on the future of the Liberation Committee, which had been
incomplete in the previous year and was a source of frustration to students and their representatives. Working
with the Union Chair and Union’s Management Committee, it was agreed that
a new Liberation Network would be piloted which brought students together
from liberation backgrounds and beyond, to work on campaigns and projects
and to take part in activity.
The network successfully formed but was limited in the activity that could take
place. At the Union’s Annual Members’ Meeting in May 2021, it was agreed
that the Liberation Network would replace the Liberation Committee, and next
year aim to expand and reinvigorate liberation activism and activity on campus,
to ensure all sectors of the student body are acknowledged and celebrated.

The Course Representatives (Course Rep) programme underwent numerous
significant changes this year. Firstly, due to the pandemic, all Course Rep training
had to take place online, and all our Student Voice Forum events similarly were
hosted digitally. Continuing the previous success of hosting an online Course
Rep nomination process, this year we streamlined the process, culminating
in elections running in their smoothest manner this May. During the year, we
also transferred Rep training content onto the new Skills Platform, to share
the knowledge gained by Reps to other students, supporting the Union’s
Employability Pulse opportunity. We also wrote and submitted a proposal to
standardise PGR Course Rep elections, in order to improve consistency, democracy, and awareness of the PGR
Rep role. The hope is that PGR Rep elections will be improved and implemented in October 2021. Finally, we
also worked collaboratively with the University Comms team to raise awareness of Course Reps by producing
promotional videos and Rep Profiles which were hosted on the Union website and also emailed out in
personalised messages to all students.
Course Reps themselves have worked hard to balance the voluntary role alongside their studies in an unusual
year, whilst also adapting to hybrid learning, and facing the challenge of not being able to meet all their peers
or chat to them face to face to gather feedback. However, Reps have been vital in consulting on changes to
modules and assessments for hybrid learning, and helping to create community within departments, with
some Reps starting fantastic initiatives such as thank you Christmas cards for academic staff, student buddy
schemes, online coffee mornings, and games nights. Finally, Reps have worked hard to adapt to the new student
feedback platform, MySurrey Voice (powered by Unitu), and encouraging students to utilise the platform to
share their feedback, concerns, and praise.
MySurrey Voice

Democratic Activity
During a challenging year we conducted three main democratic events:
•

•
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Make Your Change: Students at Surrey vote annually on their ‘priority campaign’ for the year. This year,
although idea submissions from students were lower, turnout for voting (860) was nearly double the
previous year. The winning idea was once again Sustainable Surrey and this idea was taken forward by the
Community Zone who hosted several successful Sustainability Forum events.
Group AGMs and EGMs: This year all 176 group AGMs and 44 EGMs took place online via Teams using
a workflow which enabled officers to officiate them remotely, using online voting. In the light of the
pandemic and lack of engagement between some members and their clubs and societies, some temporary
changes were made to the Union’s rules, including allowing groups to remain active provided they could
elect at least 2 signatories rather than the usual 3. This helped enable most student groups to stay active
into the next academic year.

In August 2020, the Vice-Provost Education, Prof. Osama Khan, aimed to implement a new student feedback
platform, Unitu. The Voice Zone were involved in the project group for the implementation of the platform,
and in just under 6 weeks, contributed to the successful launch. The Voice Zone was involved in finalising
branding, marketing materials, student communications, updating University policies, and numerous other
strategic decisions.
The new platform also required a redesign of all our Course Rep promotional
materials, training content, and policy documents to account for the new
platform. The work of the Zone was highly valued in the implementation of this
project. Over the year, the Zone has worked to support Reps in adapting to
the new platform and liaised with the University to raise any concerns around
student and staff usage of the platform. 98% of Course Reps have activated their
accounts, though student activation has been lower. Most recently, the Zone
has begun collaboratively evaluating the platform with the aim to increase its
impact for 2021/22.
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Student Voice Forum
The Student Voice Forum was hosted entirely online through the year and achieved its greatest level of
participation, with 370 Course Reps in attendance at the second (February) forum. The forum meetings
provided an essential live connection between the student body and University decision makers, and discussed
prevalent issues including hybrid learning, rent rebates, the new MySurrey Voice platform and University to
student communications.
Continuing with the themed Forum structure, the discussions this year were particularly helpful in addressing
bigger issues impacting the wider student body, rather than individual issues with limited relevancy to the
full audience. We also continued to utilise interactive polls via Menti to gather live feedback on these topics,
which have proved helpful in platforming the student voice on these wider issues. We extend our thanks to
our University colleagues Professor Osama Khan, Andy Chalklin and Lucy Evans for their participation in these
panel events.
Zone Member achievements

Finally, throughout the year, the VP Voice has contributed to the Learning Analytics project and the Academic
Standards and Curriculum Review project, consulted on the Doctoral College’s proposal for PHDs by Publication,
and has collaborated with the Library team to increase access to online e-textbooks via Bibliu, amongst other
work throughout the year.

Pulse achievements
The Voice Zone has seen some key achievements in Pulse results this year. Agreement that “The Students’
Union effectively represents students’ academic interests” rose from 58% in 2019/20 to 66% in 2020/21.
Similarly, satisfaction and agreement to questions such as “The Students’ Union represents students on the
right academic issues”, “I know what the Students’ Union is doing to represent my academic interests”, and
“The Students’ Union represents the views of students effectively” also rose from 19/20 to 20/21. Awareness
and use of Course Reps also rose this year, including awareness of how to contact Course Reps, and awareness
that Course Reps are part of the SU, both of which have been particular areas of focus. Finally, agreement with
the statement “I can influence decisions made by the Students’ Union” rose by 7% in Pulse 2 this year.

Despite the difficulties of operating mainly virtually, the Part-Time Officers within the Voice Zone this year have
made significant contributions in promoting the student voice at Surrey:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Collaborated with the Support and Activity Zones on campaigns such as Eating Disorder Awareness and
projects such as a Signatory Exit Survey
Ran dedicated campaigning workshop to educate students on running an effective campaign.
Made substantive contributions to make the Union and University feedback systems such as MySurrey
Voice more effective
Contributed to Course Rep training, including material for Joint Honours students to help them navigate
the complexities of their course administration
Advocated for PGR Course Rep elections to be standardised alongside creating a Postgraduate Engagement
Forum chairs forum
Liaised with University communications team to ensure that students are receiving relevant information
from the University, and suggesting how communications can be better tailored for PGR students
Met with Employability & Careers team regarding improved support for placement students
Had regular meetings with senior management to hold them to account for their promises at Zone meetings
and All Officer meetings on topics including assessments and hybrid learning
Organised a campaign aimed at increasing voter turnout in Guildford local elections
Contributed to ensuring SurreyDecides ran smoothly, through chairing debates, promoting elections, and
moderating public comments.

VP Voice achievements
In addition to the projects and successes outlined earlier, the VP Voice has been involved in numerous
University projects and working groups and has also worked to implement manifesto points throughout the
year. Firstly, with the aim to align Course Reps more closely with departmental societies, the new society role of
Departmental Liaison Officer was created. This role exists to expose Course Reps to the society membership to
diversify the feedback they gather, and also to provide an opportunity for departmental societies to contribute
to feedback discussions. This pilot idea has hopefully set positive groundwork to be built upon in the coming
academic year, especially as society activity begins to resume following the lifting of Covid restrictions.
Secondly, the VP Voice also worked to represent accessibility issues to the University and to continue to
advocate for improved accessibility across Surrey campuses. This has included policy work throughout the
pandemic, securing carer campus cards, and making practical improvements such as accessible ramps and
fixing lifts.
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ACTIVITY ZONE
Clubs and Societies
The Activity Zone’s clubs and societies continue to amaze with their valuable contribution to the student
experience at Surrey. Despite the majority of activity being on hold for almost 50% of the year, many student
groups created online communities and kept morale high with over 9000 student club and society memberships
being recorded.
Highlights for Team Surrey clubs included Netball putting on a string of virtual charity events accessible to
all and raising much needed funds for Oakleaf, Rape Crisis UK and the Netball Development Trust; Fencing
completing a 12 hour lunge-a-thon in aid of Surrey Nightline; Boat Club members covered over 4600km to
raise money for Guildford Action and worked closely with AgeUK Surrey to support elderly patients over
Christmas and Women’s Football organised walking challenges, virtual horse racing and participated in the TriKelly’s Challenge to raise money for Movember, Macmillan, The Children’s Trust and The Alzheimer’s Society.
Some clubs were fortunate enough to be able to compete and had some great
results. Triathlon were one of the first clubs to compete in BUCS in 2020/21
and did not disappoint. Roisin Browne came third in April’s Duathlon and went
even better weeks later at the Standard Triathlon, winning gold in the female
event – the first Surrey female to ever do so! The men did well too, gaining
three top 30 finishes in the Duathlon and a 9th place for Luke Gwenter in the
Standard Triathlon. Boat Club’s dedicated athletes had their hard work pay-off
at a successful BUCS Regatta in June taking home 2 Gold medals, 8 Silver medals
and 1 Bronze medals. Finally, Karting resumed their British University Champs
competition and narrowly missed out on the medals claiming a very respectable
5th place out of 40 universities and the Canoe Club achieved an excellent 4th
place at the BUCS Canoe Polo Championships; their best finish to date!
Societies have equally impressed in their efforts this year; Islamic Society
raised an incredible £30,000 during their Islamic fundraising week; Paramedic
Society created a video for mental health awareness which went viral and the
president was invited to BBC Surrey to discuss the project; Business Society
were shortlisted at the Bright Network Society of the Year Awards 2020 under
the category of “Impact on Campus”; Christian Union organised a two-week
long event on Zoom called ‘Encounter’, they invited speakers and interviewees
from around the world (US to Africa) to speak which was well attended; Surrey
Economics and Finance Society managed to partner with five organizations and
secured sponsorships from companies such as Lazard and Charles Stanley, which
is definitely a big feat for a society running under the pressures of Covid-19
restrictions and Dodgeball organised ‘Operation: Spread Joy’, a project set up as a continuation from last year,
to give back to the Guildford community and provide those who are struggling on the streets with a bag of
essential items including toothbrush, toothpaste, soap, face masks, comb, socks, gloves and some bags had
extra items such as scarfs, hairbands and sanitary products for female specific bags.
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COVID-19 Officers
One of Activity’s biggest successes of the year was the recruitment, training and implementation of over 400
volunteer COVID-19 Officers. Any society that wanted to resume their core activity or hold a social had to
nominate at least one Covid-19 Officer, this involved leading on the health & safety of the group, risk assessing
activity and ensuring that all measures put in place were satisfied. This involved extra work for our groups but
they fully embraced the new role and complied with our new measures.

Signatory Exit Survey
Working with the Voice Zone, we launched our first Signatory Exit survey for the outgoing 2020/21 committees.
We received a response rate of around 15% to questions concerning readiness for signatory roles, club/
society feeling valued and employability and wellbeing being supported. We had some really pleasing results,
with over 75% of respondents reporting they felt the Union and/or Team Surrey had fully equipped them
in feeling ready to run a club or society; 70% strongly agreed or agreed the Union and/or Team Surrey had
communicated effectively and nearly 70% believing that the Union and/or Team Surrey had supported the
wellbeing of committee and members. The results of the survey will be shared with the incoming Activity Zone
with an action plan being created and objectives assigned to the team. We will also continue to use this survey
annually and increase the response rate.

Drug & Alcohol Awareness Campaign
This year, VP Activity & VP Community conducted research into student drug use at the University of Surrey
by sharing a survey across a range of Union platforms. Over 800 students took part in the survey with the key
finding being that drug use is relatively common among Surrey students, with 43% of respondents reported
having used drugs while at the university. Many respondents, including those who had not personally partaken
in drug use, disclosed an awareness for drug use being a regular occurrence at Surrey. The data from the survey
was turned into a drug use report with the intention of reviewing it every couple of years to identify how drug
behaviours, experiences and attitudes of students are changing. The student drug report was presented to
Management Committee in November 2020 and it was agreed that the Union would form a partnership with
drug alcohol & harm reduction group, Neurosight.
Neurosight worked with us to reduce drug-related harm through evidence-based practices by conducting
research and delivering educational workshops and webinars to our students and also by helping us review our
Students’ Union and University drug policies and procedures. We held several meetings with key stakeholders
at the University to discuss adopting “harm reduction” as opposed to the current “zero-tolerance” stance on
drug use in order to protect students and give them a safe space to feel comfortable enough to ask for help,
without having to worry about any repercussions. As a result, the University did a review of their own drug
policy and updated it in March 2021. They are planning to launch their first ever drug campaign in September
2021 as a result of these conversations.
One of the objectives of this campaign is continuity, therefore we have opened up an Students for Sensible
Drug Policy (SSDP) at Surrey after getting approval from Management Committee. SSDP is a global network
of students who lobby for fairer drug policies and greater harm reduction education. Any student can get
involved in this group and help organise drug education events, host discussions and be a voice within drug
reform activism.
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Transgender & Non-Binary Policy

STARs Awards

Following feedback from Surrey’s transgender community that they felt excluded from sport due to the gender
segregation prevalent throughout most clubs, we created the Union’s first Transgender & Non-Binary policy.
This allowed transgender students to know their rights when joining a club or attending an event with a binary
element and also to educate club committees on how to be more inclusive, not only in welcoming all students
but with the language and behaviours used.

This year STARs Awards were changed to incorporate a new badge scheme. We have five badges each with
their own criteria that clubs and societies can work towards gaining. This was based upon feedback from
students that STARs awards were too broad in the past and clubs and societies wanted to be able to focus on
one specific area.

As a segue to launching the policy, we invited Loughborough University’s Joanna Harper to talk at Sports
Standing on the barriers that transgender individuals face when it comes to sport along with the science
behind hormone replacement therapy and how it affects athletes. Joanna is an advisor and consultant to
several international sporting federations including the International Olympic Committee so to have her speak
to Surrey students was a significant coup.

Employable Me
This year we chose to have a more regular and consistent Employable Me message rather than a couple of
key events. We implemented Employable Me Mondays on the Union’s Instagram stories featuring current
students who had held a volunteering position within the Union talking about the skills they’d gained and
if/how they had engaged with the University’s Careers & Employability platform. This was then followed up
with links to any employability related workshops or sessions happening that week and proved successful in
increasing the numbers engaged with such sessions.

The badges we awarded were:
•
•
•
•
•

Collaboration badge
Community Outreach, Volunteering and Fundraising badge
Wellbeing Badge
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Badge
Employable me Badge

Despite the difficulty in being able to achieve some of the criteria due to the pandemic, we were still able to
award six societies with Gold Stars Awards (4 or more badges). One Society with Silver (3 badges) and seven
Societies with Bronze (1/2 badges). For the Gold Stars winners we presented them with a certificate at the
Awards night and also hosted a pizza and prosecco party for them in The Marquee.

Tri-Kelly’s Challenge
The restrictions didn’t prevent us from holding the annual Kelly’s Storage charity event; this year in the guise
of a virtual three-way challenge where participants could walk, run or cycle to meet a target distance over a
three-week period. Over 110 students took part and raised much needed funds for RAG’s chosen charities,
The Children’s Trust and The Alzheimer’s Society.
International Women’s Day
This year’s International Women’s Day saw the Union run an online awareness campaign which many clubs
and societies got behind with the hashtag #choosetochallenge.

Colours Awards
Despite the lack of sport this year, we still awarded a large number of Club, Half and Full Colours to students
who had either gone above and beyond their role in contributing to the organisation of their club or performed
at a high level for their university and beyond. We were also able to host an in-person ceremony, joint with
Union Ball, in The Marquee much to the delight of hundreds of students!

18

19

SUPPORT ZONE
Academic Advice
The Support Zone has seen an increasing number of students seeking support from the Academic Advice
team, and whilst the overall increase is low (9.2% increase), we have seen a 23.5% increase in the number of
more complex student cases coming to the service including Disciplinaries, Fitness to Practise and Academic
Integrity cases. To accommodate for the increase in students we have recruited another full-time Support
Coordinator, to help with the growing advice service and Support Zone projects.
Throughout the pandemic we have continued our online service, providing Teams calls to support students
through online Panels and meetings. Additionally, we have continued our drop-in Extenuating Circumstances
(ECs) session and academic appeal service through Zoom. Since the success of
some of our advice outreach programmes, we have continued our Instagram
takeovers “Ask Me Anything” about academic advice. We have also increased
our provision for support by introducing “Quick Queries” – 15-minute bookable
appointments with a member of the advice team.
This year, we have also submitted a proposal to the University to implement
changes to the Regulations for Academic Integrity to increase the range
of penalties available to Academic’s when giving a penalty of misconduct to
students. Currently, the Union believe the penalties are too harsh when looking
at the sector and we hope that this proposal will be considered for the new
academic year.
Welfare Watch
Welfare Watch ran throughout Fresher’s week at the Lake and in The Marquee but with COVID-19 restrictions,
they were unable to continue for the remainder of the academic year. They were, however able to support
with some of our other Union projects including a campaign for safe alcohol and drug use on campus, ‘Light
up the Night’ and other safety awareness campaigns. Additionally, Welfare Watch members were part of a
consultation with Surrey Police and the local community to help raise awareness of lone women on a night out
in Guildford. Welfare Watch are looking forward to returning to campus for Fresher’s week 2021.

They also ran a further three cycles of the Positive Minds sessions with good
attendance throughout. The success of the online programmes led to consultation
with the charity Student Minds, who adopted the online programme at other
Universities.
A new committee has been elected for the new academic year 2021/22 with
plans to expand the provision of the service to cover more mental health
campaigns and running ‘Motivate Me’, a peer support group for students with
eating difficulties.
Nightline
Nightline have adapted well to the pandemic and although the listening volunteers were unable to access their
office to provide phone call and Instant Messaging support to students, they continued to run their 24 hour
email service for students who needed a listening ear. The new Nightline committee have been elected for the
21/22 academic year, with plans for additional training cycles in September 2021, before the semester starts,
to ensure volunteer engagement ready for Freshers’ Week.
Bereavement Support
Following the ‘Being Well,Doing Well’ wellbeing survey, which identified that 51% of Surrey students experience
a loss whilst they are at University, the VP Support manifesto this year focused on ensuring there was more
support in place for students who experienced a bereavement or loss at university.
The University agreed to amend the Regulations for Extenuating Circumstances to make it easier for students
to confirm a death of a significant other, meaning that you only need to provide evidence of the death and not
additional evidence to confirm the relationship to the student. This has made it more accessible for students to
access extensions and deferrals on assessments when they are grieving, which has been especially important
throughout the pandemic.
The VP Support also worked in collaboration with the Chaplaincy to introduce an online Bereavement Support
Group for students who have experienced loss or who are grieving, no matter when the loss happened. A safe
space to discuss thoughts and feelings with other students experiencing similar things, the support group has
been popular with students and will continue into the next academic year.
No More to sexual violence and misconduct

Student Minds

The Support Zone and Student Minds committee trained 12 new Peer Support Facilitators who were inducted
into the programme in October 2020. Student Minds had a successful first term and were able to provide a
6-week face to face cycle of the support group, as well as offering a 4-week online cycle.

One of the more memorable Support Zone campaigns this year was “No More
Week” which focused on saying ‘No More’ to sexual violence and misconduct on
campus, following alarming statistics from the NUS and our ‘Being Well,Doing
Well’ survey. With a passionate Support Zone this year, their manifestos focused
on calling the University and Union to action to change the culture on campus
and reduce sexual violence to students.
The campaign was a huge success and saw hundreds of students take part in our
‘Light Up The Night’ COVID-19-secure march on campus to raise awareness and
bring together the community.

As the University and the UK went into lockdown in January 2021, the Student Minds committee arranged for
support through exams, providing an online space for students to revise together.

continued overleaf

Following the successful launch of the Student Minds: Positive Minds peer support group in the 2019/20
academic year, Student Minds continued their support offering this academic year. The peer support group
aims to support students who are experiencing low mood or depression at university, through a range of group
facilitation sessions, which focus on different themes for recovery.

20

21

Additionally, the Consent Course was launched earlier this year, in November
2020 and asked students to sign up to #MakethePledge to educate themselves
on consent and bystander behaviour, to make the campus a safer place for
everyone. The campaign was launched with a video including sports clubs and
societies encouraging their peers to take the course. The ‘No More’ campaign
also included education sessions for men on ‘How to be an Ally’ and called upon
students to once again, #MakethePledge.
Following the campaign, the University and Council have committed to looking
at campus and community lighting to make areas safer. The University have also
arranged the training of three staff to become SVLO’s (Sexual Violence Liaison
Officer’s), and new policies and support provisions are being developed for our Student Sex Workers.
How to be an Ally
The VP Support introduced a new series of events named “How to be an Ally” and focused on educating Surrey
students on how they can be an ally to marginalised or vulnerable groups in society.
Collaborating with the zones, societies, and other VP’s, ‘How to be an Ally’ was ran online for a series of topics
including: Black culture, LGBTQ+, Women and non-men, autism and invisible disabilities.
Other Campaigns
Throughout the academic year, the Support Zone also ran their usual campaigns
including ‘SurreyLove’, which provided virtual activities to support revision and
wellbeing over the examination period. We also ran our Wellbeing Week in
week 5 (also known as ‘drop-out week’) to provide a space for students to relax
and opportunities to talk about their experiences at university with a range of
activities.
We also ran our ‘Tea, Toast and Talk’ breakfast club, yoga sessions, online
revision sessions with Student Minds and a host of other events.
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COMMUNITY ZONE
Following the COVID-19 restrictions, this year’s social activities were heavily affected. Many Students’
Unions switched to completely online activity and closed their venues for the duration of the pandemic. We,
however, faced the challenges head-on and took every opportunity to offer as much in-person activity that
was physically possible whilst adhering to COVID-19 restrictions. We strived to ensure students felt a part of
a community at Surrey and we can look back now on this year and know that we did everything in our power
to create a real student experience.

Overall, feedback was that students had a better experience as the Fair was less crowded and it was easier to
see everything properly and talk to people. We have learnt from this experience and in future will continue
with ticketed timeslots and a one way system. We also used QR codes and went paperless to avoid handouts
for COVID-19 reasons, however we will also continue to do this is future to save wasting paper.
Due to restrictions we were unable to open Rubix as a nightclub, however again we faced this challenge head
on and delivered a COVID-19 secure outdoor event by The Lake. A big screen and stage showed entertainment
including DJ’s, films, live music and performances. There were 100 picnic benches for students to sit in groups
of 6 and food and drinks could be ordered via an app. This was hugely successful and provided students with a
place to socialise. The lake was enjoyed so much we would like to do something similar in future as it provides
an alternative to clubbing.
Rubix / The Marquee

Freshers’ Week
Against the odds we provided a combination of in-person and online Freshers’
experiences for the incoming cohort. Armed with around 140 willing volunteers
the Moving-In operation ran smoother than ever, with arrivals sticking strictly to
their time slots which were more evenly spread over the weekend.
Whilst the Freshers’ Angels and Super Angels were instructed not to physically
help move belongings they were a great reassuring and supportive energy to
students and parents arriving on campus for the first time. This was especially
important at a time of uncertainty and additional worry, and their presence was
greatly received.
A sample of the feedback we received “My wife and I want to thank all of the staff and students who made moving our daughter into the Stag Hill
residences such a pleasant and easy task. The organisation was faultless, the students helping out were very
friendly and everyone we met went “the extra mile” to help out”
“Our daughter moved into University today and we were very impressed by the arrangements on campus
of the Welcome staff , they were enthusiastically (all of them) waving saying hello directing us to where we
needed to go.”
“We would like to thank everyone for making us feel so welcome yesterday! On arrival it was great to receive
such friendly greetings and waves from the yellow shirts! We were impressed with how all was so organised
with the car windscreen hangers and parking. Clear directions were given.”
“You made us feel very welcome especially during these strange Co-vid times
where it was reassuring to see that life at the University of Surrey has not
stopped, but people have stepped up to the challenge and really well organised
a crucial day in the life of our son.” 			
A socially distanced Freshers’ Fair was held in The Marquee. The majority of other
Universities only had a virtual Freshers’ Fair, however we rose to the challenge
and managed to successfully hold both a physical and online Fair. In-person stalls
were distanced with a one system in place and students signed up for a free
ticketed time slot online. Numbers were limited so the only impact was that only
first years could attend.
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Following on from a successful COVID-19 safe Freshers’ Week and restrictions
not allowing clubs to re-open for the foreseeable future, we transformed Rubix
into a Lounge. We put pool tables by Hari’s Bar, and created a ‘speakeasy’ style
décor on the dancefloor, including extra sofas on the balcony. Lord Falafel also
provided a food service.
The seated capacity of Rubix was limited to approx. 250 which unfortunately
wasn’t big enough for the number of students still wishing to socialise and it was
full almost every night. The University recognised this and supported us to turn
The Marquee into a COVID-19 safe event space. We moved the picnic benches,
bar, screen, décor from the lake into the marquee and it was immediately hugely
popular. It did have to shut for a number of months between November 2020 and April 2021 due to another
lockdown, however it has been a very popular beer garden from mid-April until July 2021.
We switched to a better app (Served Up) allowing much quicker speed of service and had visiting food traders
each week. It was so popular we had to buy more picnic benches, increasing the capacity to over 800 making
it the biggest COVID-19 secure events space in the country. After term ended, we kept The Marquee open for
a number of students still in Guildford and fortunately showing the Euros worked in our favour. The Marquee
closed as an entertainment venue at the beginning of July so it could be set up for Graduations.
We had planned to open Rubix on the 21st June, the initial planned reopening date of nightclubs, however
that was delayed by the government, and we regrettably refunded all tickets. Rubix opening on the 19th July
for the second week of Graduations and our biggest Grad Ball ever, taking place on the 23rd July 2021. Our first
big unrestricted event in 18 months.
Showcase and Cultural Events
In addition to social events we were also able to host a number of key Union and society events in The Marquee.
One World Gala was able to take place without an audience and was livestreamed. One World Fashion Show
was introduced too and the participating societies had a chance to show off their traditional dress and the
fashion society commentated. Over the last few weeks Holi Ball, Hellenic Night, Bhangra Night and Spanish
Night were also held in The Marquee.
Union and Colours Balls were combined into one event and all nominees and their guests were invited to
attend an awards ceremony in the Marquee. Winners collected their awards in person and the ceremony was
also livestreamed.
25

A manifesto pledge of VP Community was to create a ‘UniVision Song Contest’, to bring together musicians
from across UK universities to compete in a Eurovision-style event. The event was organised by a large team of
staff and students, including the University’s music and media students who used their work on the show for
practical assignments. The live finale was a great success, with Alys from ACM being announced as the winner.
A playback of the show is available at www.univison.show.
VP Community also organised PrideFest in The Marquee for LGBT+ Pride Month, including performances
from local drag queen, Tiana Biscuit and Community Zone-elect member KJ Acolina. During the periods that
physical events weren’t allowed we continued to Livestream the weekly quiz to keep students engaged and we
streamed a special Glitterbomb night for LGBT+ history month.
Over the Christmas period loneliness was a huge concern to the Zone, especially as many students were not
able to travel home and shops and services were closed because of lockdown. Supported by the University, we
were able to open The Marquee on Christmas Day and Boxing Day and provide a free meal and a free movie
to those in need. VP Community also created a calendar of events occurring during the University vacation
period, to keep students’ entertained.
Following on from Christmas we supported students on campus by serving over 300 free meals from Youngs
Kitchen for Lunar New Year. This included a DIY dumpling kit to encourage students to do something interactive,
and to enjoy with their household.
Volunteering
Despite the restrictions imposed on students, they still found many ways to engage with volunteering whilst at
home or online. Here are some of the highlights:
•
•
•
•
•

72 opportunities applied for
By 976 student volunteers
Who logged 14594 hours of volunteering
We have reached a record number of volunteers registered on the system at 3841; of which 953 joined
this year.
We now have 267 partners on the system which splits into 142 charity/non-profit and 125 Socs/Clubs all
using the platform to create opportunities or log hours.

Volunteering at Surrey has a vast reach which can take students to Borneo or the
Amazon to do conservation volunteering, to a local charity shop to help out The
Red Cross, through to Stewarding at Festivals for Marie Curie, mentoring, buddy
schemes for the elderly and able bodied and social media marketing volunteers.
772 students volunteered directly for opportunities posted by us as a Union which
included Freshers’ Angels, Course Reps, Welfare Watch, campus litter picks and
the incredible 205 students who became Self-Isolation Buddies since lockdown
began.
COVID-19 Volunteering March to June

One student even did 280hrs of volunteering assisting their local Citizens Advice Bureau in Southend, meanwhile
one of our incoming Sabbs has done 114 hours for Guildford’s Citizen Advice Bureau.
We created a cross department opportunity called ‘Self-Isolation Buddies’. Student volunteers ‘buddied up’
with students who were self-isolating. The ‘Buddies’ delivered shopping or offered any other help with errands
etc. that the people in isolation needed. The success of this scheme and take up meant we had universities
across the country contacting us to ask for advice about how we did it and how we have developed such an
engaged student volunteering audience.
Duke of Edinburgh Awards
The Duke of Edinburgh Awards scheme is a world-renowned volunteer programme for young adults all the
way up to 25yrs of age. We have been seeing a steady rise in participants since we started to slowly grow
this aspect of our volunteering programme. This year we are proud to report that we have become the first
Union/University to help one of our students become a DofE Ambassador. This student will now work with us
to lead the DofE programme including leading expeditions with the participants in the award scheme. We are
looking forward to helping our student ambassador continue to grow the DofE function here and enable more
students to get involved with a peer-to-peer student-led approach.
RAG
To ensure we are supporting local initiatives, the RAG Chair wrote a motion which was passed by the Union
Executive, and from 2021/22, at least one of the two RAG charities we fundraise for will be a local charity.
Here are some of their highlights from this year:
•
•
•
•

Following the explosion in Beirut, Lebanon, in August 2020, RAG fundraised
over £1000 for the Lebanon Red Cross thanks to generous student donations.
In November 2020 the RAG Chair and other Union officers supported Surrey
Movember and helped raise an amazing £11,490.47 for the Movember
charity.
A successful RAG Week was held in May 2021 and despite COVID-19
restrictions, £1180 was raised.
A special fundraising event ‘Sounds of Summer’ was organised in The
Marquee by events management students and sponsored by Future
Generations.

Drug Education and Harm Reduction
In December, the VP Community wrote the ‘Student Drug Use Report 2020’, analysing survey results gathered
by herself and the VP Activity in the months prior. Following this, the VP Community also wrote a new ‘Student
Drug Use Policy’ for the Students’ Union which was passed by the Board of Trustees, starting a SSDP (Students
for Sensible Drug Policy) group at Surrey. They have also worked with the University and external organisation,
NeuroSight, on a harm reduction campaign.

At the start of the first lockdown we partnered with Surrey County Council and Voluntary Action South West
Surrey to provide 30+ students to support services and voluntary organisations across the county/regionally
which ranged from helping at a walk-in centre for the homeless in a kitchen in Farnham, to the emergency
response and support of Royal Surrey Hospital.
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Zone Activity and achievements
A Zone Committee Members have been active despite the restrictions and have
achieved the following •
•

•

They have created the monthly ‘Citizenship Award’ to celebrate students
doing good for the community, such as volunteering and charity work.
There is now an additional volunteering initiative for students - The Events
Network which will expand on our existing work by further promoting the
core components of our Zone (Raising and Giving; Volunteering; community
engagement). Volunteers will organise and support student events.
They voiced the concerns of students and initiated conversations with the University about an international
guarantor scheme.
Sustainability
A sustainability policy for the Union was passed and implemented this year. The
VP Community organised the first ‘Sustainability Forum’ event, providing an
opportunity for students and staff to directly share ideas, concerns or questions
surrounding sustainability at Surrey with relevant staff members.
A ‘Sustainability Week’ was also organised, with content including: a litter pick
on campus; guest speakers; and Instagram live discussions with students and
organisations.

A Community Zone member, led on the Union’s ‘Sustainable Surrey’ campaign and organised engaging
Instagram live events, contributed strongly to University meetings, and organised much of the sustainability
week. Towards the end of the year, the VP Community and the Zone Member worked with the University to
pilot a food waste app called Olio, in catering outlets on campus.
The VP Community has also introduced a new role to club and society committees, the ‘Sustainability Rep’.
This role will provide guidance to members on how to reduce our impact on the environment through society
and club activity.
A Christmas Tree decorating competition was also held called ‘SustainabiliTREE’ to encourage students to
make a Christmas tree out of waste such as used bottles or cans.
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Discontinued Policy
Reasoning has been given in Red:

Support Vet Students with Wellbeing Concerns Surrounding EMS
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated, including
those named. The Support Zone continues to provide support to all schools within the University,
including Vet School Surrey Love, however this motion is no longer relevant to the Union Activities.
Background

EMS, or Extra Mural Studies, describes the 40 weeks of compulsory placement vet students are
required to undertake as part of their degree in accordance with the RCVS guidelines. These
placement weeks must occur outside of teaching weeks, i.e. during university vacations, and must
cover multiple areas and disciplines within the veterinary profession. At the seven UK vet schools
besides Surrey, students are allocated time during the lecture- free fifth year to complete any
outstanding weeks. Students believe this provides a safety net for them, should they be prevented
from completing their EMS for any reason.
However, here at Surrey, no such time has been allocated, and fifth year will commence five weeks
after the summer exam period of fourth year, providing little time to allow for lastminute
placements. As such, students are very concerned that they may not have any respite period until
graduation, as the below Facebook post would suggest. So far, academics do not feel concerned and
believe that students will be able to complete their EMS.
USSU believes
1. Having such little time for respite in addition to a notably heavily-timetabled course raises cause
for concern with regards to student wellbeing.
2. Although EMS presents a long-term issue with a faraway outcome, students are concerned now
and this may be affecting their student experience.
3. As with any course, some students may struggle more than others to meet the requirements as
presented above, and this may allow some students to slip ‘beneath the radar’, which the USSU
would never condone.
4. Vet students are already a high-risk group (see the BVA/AVS annual survey*) and so the USSU
should provide support wherever possible.
USSU Resolves
1. To monitor students by holding meetings once per semester with a focus group of representative
students across all year groups (e.g. course reps) and one or more members of the USSU, to include
a Support Zone member, to discuss current progress, wellbeing concerns, and any action the USSU
can take to support students in this area.
2. To meet with academics and course organisers in the vet school in order to raise student concerns
and ask: a. Can the School’s EMS programme be communicated better to students to avoid raising
such concern? b. As Surrey is the only vet school without allocated time in fifth year to complete

placements, what counter-measures are in place to ensure students here have the same support
and opportunities as at other schools? c. Why doesn’t Surrey have time set aside in fifth year?
2. To report back to students, in any format, what was discussed with academics, how academics
intend to support students, how the USSU can help, and AOB. NB: Academics and admin staff to
meet with in resolves 2 may include Emily de la Perelle and Karen Field (placements
administration), Sharmini Paramasivam (EMS coordinator), Kamalan Jeevaratnam (programme
director), Becky Lewis (senior tutor), and Chris Proudman (head of school). *BVA/AVS annual
survey can be found here: https://www.bva.co.uk/news-campaignsandpolicy/newsroom/newsreleases/study-pressures-students--biggest-worry/

Ending Unreasonable Exam Conditions
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated and irrelevant
to new processes
USSU Notes
1. That examinations have been conducted at 6.30pm during the January exam period.
2. That examinations during this time did not allow for the true potential of students to be fulfilled.
[1]
3. That examinations at this time caused undue stress to students
4. That on the 15th of January, the examination hall 01AC01 was overbooked with two sets of
examinations set to take place in the hall.
5. That this lead to the exam for MAN2125 Applied Financial Management started 45 minutes after
it should of.
USSU Believes
1. That Examinations that take place past 6pm do not truly reflect the performance skills of students.
[1]
2. That Examinations that take place past 6pm caused undue stress on students and lead to
ineffectiveness in performance.
3. That overbooking exam halls and the stress of delayed start times has a negative effect upon the
performance of the students.
4. That a major disruption causes students to become more stressed and leads to decrease
performance [2]
USSU Resolves
1. To call on the University to outright ban examinations past 6pm.
2. USSU to urgently and thoroughly investigate student opinion on timetabling, density and duration
of exams and present this feedback at the timetabling review’ a. To call on the university to

implement the proposed changes by the following exam period References [1]
http://www.pnas.org/content/113/10/2621.abstract [2] http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-englanddevon-35361798

The Right to Stay Motion
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated and irrelevant
resolves
USSU notes
1. On the 29th March 2017, the Prime Minister of the United Kingdom (UK) will trigger Article 50 of
the Lisbon Treaty.
2. Members of Parliament (MPs), by a majority of 42, voted against a bill that would protect the
residence rights of citizens of the European Union and their family members who were lawfully
resident in the United Kingdom on 23 June 2016.
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Guildford MP, Rt Hon Anne Milton, was among those who voted against the bill which would
guarantee the right of EU national students to stay.

USSU believes
1. That European nationals should have the right to stay in the UK after Brexit
2. That EU national students are an integrated part of student body
3

Withholding the right to stay not only threatens European national Surrey students but also
affects all students who wish to make friends with people from different cultures and
backgrounds.

USSU Resolves
1. To write an open letter to Rt Hon Anne Milton detailing the USSU’s unconditional support for the
EU national students right to stay and asking her to change her position at the next available
opportunity.
2. To invite Rt Hon Anne Milton to defend her position and receive questions from the student body.

General Assemblies and the Workers Charter
No longer a priority for the Union
USSU Notes:
1. According to surveys done by the Endsleigh [Ends]: a. 77% of students now work to fund studies.
b. 53% of students continue to depend on their parents financially to help them through university.
c. 57% of students are working to help pay for household bills.
2. That student unions can push legislative change to protect people from exploitative labour
conditions, in cooperation with on-campus trade unions.

3. That student workers can be protected through a Student Workers’ Charter that is created in
conjunction with the Students’ Union and other relevant unions. a. This is a policy that is supported
by both the UCU and the NUS to protect working students, especially post-graduate students.
[UCUCharter]
4. That more action can be taken by the USSU to support the working students that it represents and
to formalise cooperation with the trade unions oncampus
5

That a PTO was elected on a manifesto of encouraging trade unionism on campus, and
protecting and extending the rights of workers.

USSU Believes:
1. That the working conditions of staff within the University are our learning conditions.
2. That organised labour is a powerful tool in protecting the rights of workers.
3. That as an organisation, USSU works to protect student welfare, promote student wellbeing and
enable students to fulfill their potential.
4. That a key way to enhance the student experience is to protect and enhance the rights and
working conditions of workers at the university.
5. That the USSU has a duty to protect its members from exploitation but it does not have the
specialist knowledge or legal capacity that a trade union has.
6. That by working together with organised labour at the university, through collaboration with
Trade Unions operating on campus, the USSU can build a stronger, safer and more supportive
community for students.
7. That a Students Workers Charter sets a sensible base level of what student workers should expect
when hired for positions at the University or the USSU
USSU Resolves:
1. To organise regular open meetings, General Assemblies, between the Sabbatical officers and the
trade unions. a. These meetings should be well advertised and accessible to all students. b. The
definition of regular used here is a minimum of once a semester.
2

To produce and endorse a student workers charter written collectively by the USSU, the Trade
Unions and post-grad soc. a. The basic outline of practices and principles in the SWC is the
purpose of the first General Assembly.

Appendix: 1. A Student Workers Charter (SWC) is a document that is written by the students and
Trade Unions on campus which is presented to the University as a set of guiding principles and good
practice that the University must adhere to. What I envision with the SWC at the University of Surrey
is using the UCU/NUS SWC (referenced below) as a basis and making additions that are relevant to
the working situation at Surrey.

End the hostile environment
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated and no longer
resolves

USSU notes:
1. On 31 July, 2018 the Conservative Government confirmed their intention to end free movement
between the UK and EU.1
2. On 2 August, 2018, however, the EU Commission released its Eurobarometer survey, showing
70pc of British people support the right to free movement across Europe.
3. That international students can be workers too: Tier 4 Visa students holders are allowed to work
up to 20 hours a week a week during the University term times and undergraduate students can
work full time during the University vacations.2
3

That international students coming to the UK are included in immigration, emigration and
migration figures.3 1www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/brexit-latest-immigrationimmigrants-eu-theresa-may-leavevote -white-paper-a8470191.html 2
https://www.surrey.ac.uk/currentstudents/visa/Working%20during%20your%20studies/ 3
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/internation
almigratio n/m
5. Educational institutions have ushered in harsher immigration surveillance policies across the
country, including at UCL.4
6. There is a rising number of student facing deportation threats from the Home Office.5 6 7
7. That the University of Surrey is made up of 37% of international students.8
8. That the University of Surrey currently upholds PREVENT policy.9
9. That the USSU passed a motion on PREVENT policy in 2015 which resolved that USSU will
‘establish a position of non-compliance with the prevent agenda’ and that ‘the union publicly
declares its position on PREVENT and the reasons as to why’.

USSU believes:
1. There should be no barriers to education.
2. Universities should be spaces where students and workers are able to express themselves
without fear of detention or persecution by the government. Universities should be spaces of
institutional autonomy and academic freedom

Research, React, Represent, Report Enacting the Students’ Union strategy based on current
member needs.
Very specific to the year it was passed

This Union Notes:
1. The Students’ Union’s current strategy states ‘for our members, everything the Union does should
enhance our mission to enrich students’ lives, the community in which they live and the University of
Surrey by creating changes they want and to enable them to achieve their ambitions.
2. The four mechanisms stated in the Union’s current strategy to support its aims are ‘Research,
React, Represent and Report.’
3. During the first semester of the current academic year (2018-19), the Union has conducted
research, including speaking to 1200 students during ‘Voice It Week’. The Union also has one
year’s worth of survey data from the Pulse survey, and information provided by students during
Get Involved Week, and the most recent Student Voice Forum.
This Union Believes
1. From this research, we have outlined the following key issues identified by students as priority
areas for the Students’ Union:
2. Time: Students have told us that despite believing strongly that taking part in sports and activities
will be of benefit to their University experience and their future careers7 , the main barrier they
experience to taking part is ‘time’8 . Students do not have sufficient time in their academic
timetables to enjoy the full breadth of their Surrey experience. Students have told us that they
strongly feel that Wednesday afternoons should be kept free on the timetable for sports and
activities.9
3. Space: Students have told us that their top frustration and the issue that bothers them the most
on campus is study space10. This is also supported by Student Voice Forum, where students 7 The
average score for the question ‘to what extent do you feel that taking part in extracurricular activity
(clubs, societies, course reps, volunteering etc.) benefits your student experience?’ was 72% (Voice It
survey, October 2018). 8 For those students who were currently involved, the most common barriers
they highlighted to participation were ‘not enough time’ (61%) and ‘timetable clashes’ (32%) For
those students who said they were currently not involved, the most common barriers highlighted to
participation were again ‘not enough time’ (61%) and ‘timetable clashes’ (18%) (Voice It survey,
October 2018) 9 ‘Keep Wednesday afternoons free on the timetable’ was ranked second in student
priorities out of the Union’s 7 key areas of focus following the NSS results. (Voice It survey, October
2018). 10 ‘Add extra study space’ was the top ranking student priority out of the Union’s 7 key areas
of focus following the NSS results. (Voice It survey, October 2018). Study space was also the top
ranking issue selected by students who participated expressed the need for more study space – the
key issue being that the University has made several improvements to the library but this does not
contain enough space for individual study, meaning students are missing out on a fantastic study
area.
4

The National Student Survey Results: The majority of students we spoke to during Voice It told
us that they were concerned about the University’s NSS results11, which have fallen again this
year, leaving the University currently in 71st place. The University is yet to publish any
information to students setting out the practical actions it will be taking in response to these
results. 5. An understanding of the Students’ Union: The majority of students spoken to during
Voice It told us that they ‘did not know’ whether the currently elected sabbatical team
represented their interests12. The Students’ Union question in the National Student Survey
(does the Students’ Union effectively represent your academic interests?) has also shown a

decline in the most recent set of results. We also know from Pulse data that students are
generally aware that they have Course Representatives but are unaware of the actions they are
taking.
This Union further believes:
1. The Union’s officer team has a shared responsibility to take action on the matters affecting
students at this moment, students who voted for them in the thousands and have given each of
them a strong mandate to act.
2. Action must come from the officer team as a whole, full- and part-time members must work
together to make changes at the University for the benefit of the student experience. 3. Students
who generally do not interact with the Students’ Union on a daily basis deserve to be represented
and informed.
This Union Resolves:
1. To campaign that students are properly represented in the revised University timetable, and that
Wednesday afternoons are kept free for sports and recreational activities.
2. To demand for no teaching activities to take place beyond 12 noon on a Wednesday, and oppose
any proposal to place teaching activity at this time in the Union’s Volunteering Festival during Get
Involved Week. The issue of insufficient library space was also raised at the November Student Voice
Forum. 11 We asked students to what extent the University’s current position of 71st mattered to
them, and the majority responded that ‘it matters to me to some extent’ (41%), with 24% saying it
mattered to them ‘a great deal’, which makes 65% of students surveyed. (Voice It survey, October
2018). 12 We asked students ‘do you feel that the current sabbatical officer team represent you?’ –
the majority (57%) answered that they did not know, with 35% answering ‘yes’ and the remaining
7% ‘no’. (Voice It survey, October 2018).
3. To discuss the amount of individual study spaces available in the library with the library leadership
team and establish plans for increasing these areas. To work with the library on better signposting of
available study space if students are finding this difficult to locate.
4. To campaign for additional individual study space available on campus that is clearly advertised
and fit for purpose.
5. To request that the University senior management team release a statement to students setting
out the actions that will be taken to improve the student experience in the light of the recent decline
in the National Student Survey results.
6. To ensure that any action taken as a reaction to the NSS is appropriate and meets the needs of
students.
7. To improve communication of the outcomes of student representation, so that all students have
an improved awareness of the role of their elected officer team, and their elected course
representatives.

Making Management Accountable
Very specific to the year it was passed

The USSU Notes:
1. University management have announced a $15m deficit[2] [1], which is not evidenced in prior[1]
financial reports ,and why over 10% of staff jobs are being cut[2] .
2. The University is significantly increasing student numbers .
3. The internationally recognised IPCC report states that drastic environmental measures must be
taken to prevent extreme climate change[3].
4. As of 2013, the University of Surrey set itself a target to reduce its carbon footprint by 34% before
2020[4]. [1]
5. Sustainability has not been included in public plans to reduce the deficit .
6. The University has not committed to affiliating with electronics watchdog, Electronics Watch [5]
despite it costing ~£5000 per annum[6]. [7]
7. Student loans are not increasing in line with the cost of living .
8. It is widely accepted that there is an ongoing mental health crisis within the student community financial and academic burdens are thought to be contributing factors[8[10],9]
9. The on-campus medical clinic is (as of April 2019) not taking any more registrations[11] .
10. University of Salford works with the Social Auditing Network (SAN) to publish a social impact
report to record the ways in which communities benefit socially and economically from it[12].
The USSU Believes:
1. The University has a duty of care for its students and its staff.
2. Students at Surrey and across the country are heavily burdened with academic stress and lack
financial support.
3. By increasing numbers, cutting staff, and under-investing in infrastructure, the University is failing
in its duty of care.
4. Meeting the 2013 carbon footprint reduction targets would considerably lower the cost of energy
on campus.
5. If the University were more environmentally sustainable, it would be more financially sustainable.
6. A regular social audit would provide a means of holding the University to account for its social and
ethical impact.
7. A socially and ethically responsible University would benefit students, staff, and the planet.

The USSU Resolves:
1. To consult with the SAN on how to democratically create an annual social audit of the University
of Surrey that addresses the financial, ethical, and environmental impact that the university has on
the world around it, and how it can improve.
2. To act upon the consultations of the SAN, and work with the University in establishing an annual
social audit.

The Surrey Food Cooperative
No longer a priority for the Union
The USSU Notes:
1. The cost of living has steadily increased over the last decade[2] [1] whilst student grants are
replaced with loans . [3]
2. Maintenance loans have not increased in line with the increased cost of living .
3. Bulk purchasing dry goods considerably lowers their cost per kilogram and packaging used.
4. Food cooperatives have been a successful means for other students unions[4,5] to alleviate some
of the pressures created by a high cost of living - buying food in bulk and selling it at not-for-profit
prices (unless there is an intention for the cooperative to expand or some additional costs are
incurred).
The USSU Believes:
1. Prices at all food outlets on campus are considerable when Notes 1 and 2 are taken into account.
2. A food cooperative could offer a much needed low-cost alternative to food outlets and shops on
campus.
3. The only financial requirements for the cooperative are start-up costs: a stall (or some other
suitable location) to sell food from and stock to sell.
4. The initial stock, and any expansion, must be discussed with the Union so as to control costs.
5. The cooperative would require student volunteers to run it.
The USSU Resolves:
1. Reach out to communities on campus who would be interested in volunteering.
2. To hold an open meeting with potential student volunteers on the nature of the food cooperative
and what they would like to stock a food cooperative with.
3. To choose a name for the food cooperative from student submissions (i.e. The Ravenous
Raccoon).

4. To invest in, and create, a food cooperative.

Fighting for Free Education
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated and no longer
resolves
USSU Notes:
1. According to the Institute for Fiscal Studies, students in England will graduate with average debts
of £50,000. a. These levels are “by far the highest in the English-speaking world”, according to the
Sutton Trust.
2. Tuition fees and maintenance grants are on the national agenda again. The Labour Party,
promising to scrap fees, achieved 40% of the vote in the most recent general election, Lord Adonis
(one of the politicians who designed the fees system) has publicly come out against them, and the
Student Loans Company has come under increasing criticism from students and the press.
3. That NUS National Conference 2017 voted by a substantial majority to “oppose and campaign
against all methods of charging students for education”.
4. Responding to this situation, the National Campaign Against Fees and Cuts (NCAFC), supported by
organisations such as Momentum, organised a national demonstration which took place on 15th
November 2017, in support of free education, living grants for all students, and an end to campus
cuts.
USSU Believes:
1. Our vision for a free and liberated higher education system is one where there are/is: a. No
financial barriers to entry: No tuition fees for any student, and living grants (not loans) for all
students that are genuinely enough to live on; b. Liberated curriculums and courses: Where what is
taught critically engages with, rather than reinforces, existing power structures of racism, sexism,
homophobia, transphobia, ableism, classism, and so on; c. Democratic management and an end to
marketisation: Where academics and all university staff have genuine job security and autonomy,
and collectively help run universities alongside students and other university workers.
2. Education, as a public good and a means of personal enrichment and development, should always
be as liberated and accessible as possible. a. A key part of this is the removal of tuition fees and the
reinstatement of maintenance grants for all students at UK universities.
3. Following the 2017 General Election, in which abolishing tuition fees became a headline policy,
there is an opportunity to win free education for students right now by effective mobilisation.
4. In order to continue the momentum of the demonstration and keep free education on the
agenda, USSU should be continually campaigning for the same demands as the demonstration: for
the immediate abolition of tuition fees for all students, for living grants for all, and an end to campus
cuts.
5. Considering the agenda of the current government it is highly unlikely any meaningful dialogue
with them is possible with them to reach this goal. a. The student movement is therefore wise to
focus on building up its grassroots base and support and growing outside pressure.

6. The larger a demonstration is the more effective it will be, generating more coverage in the press
and on social media, and creating more networks between students who may meet at the
demonstration. a. It is thus important for as many students as possible to attend the demonstration.
b. Organisations sympathetic to the causes of the student movement, such as students’ unions,
should therefore support students who wish to attend the demonstration, especially those who are
financially struggling.
USSU Resolves:
1. To publicly support the notion of a free, liberated higher education system and living grants for all
students, funded by progressive taxation.
2. To organise, run, and advertise events (such as debates, panel discussions and open meetings)
raising awareness and promoting discussion of issues related to free education. a. These could focus
on issues such as student debt, the Teaching Excellence Framework, recent changes to higher
education, national student campaigns like the NSS boycott, and so on.
3. To work with the senior members of the university management team and trade unions to
minimise disruption to students arising from staff disputes

Toilets are a Public Right
The Union has decided to carry on actioning this but felt this policy was not the best way forward to
carry out this agenda.
This Union notes
1. An estimated 10 million people in Britain have disabilities and more than one third of people aged
over 50 are registered as disabled in some way, and further that public authorities are required by
the Disability Equality Duty to consider all sectors of the society they serve. [1]
2. The UK Transgender Equality Enquiry (2015) states that Trans and Nonbinary students at UK
universities are concerned about the lack of gender neutral toilets on campus. [2]
3. The Director of Gendered Intelligence, Dr Jay Stewart, stated in evidence to the UK Transgender
Equality Enquiry that universities should provide more gender-neutral toilets.
4. The University of Surrey already has many disabled/gender neutral toilets on campus.
5. There are many gendered single-cubicle toilets around campus, in both university and union
buildings.
6. The University of Surrey and its Students’ Union is placed in one of the most vibrant and diverse
places in the world, and prides itself on being an inclusive and progressive institution.
7. Trans and disabled people are statistically at a much higher risk of being on the receiving end of
violence compared to their peers. [3] [4]
8. Many universities across the UK have gender neutral toilets. [5] a. University of York – the
university has a policy that all new builds must include gender neutral toilets which has been acted
on (one of the buildings didn’t comply, it is being disputed whether the university or the builders are
to blame). b. University of Essex – has gender neutral toilets with sanitary bins in all of them (‘took

one day to enforce after being asked to be put in.’) c. Campaigns to de-gender toilets have also been
successful at the Universities of Hull, Northampton and St Andrew's.
9. Gender neutral toilets have already been implemented in certain places across the UK, such as
Lancaster University – which has them in its library, and students’ union nightclub - as well as the
University of Northampton.
10. It is of the highest importance to ensure disabled toilets are permanently accessible for those
who require them. The transferal of the toilets proposed in this motion to gender-neutral would
alleviate issues with locating a gender neutral toilet, and inevitably lighten the traffic through the
critically important disabled toilets in the venue.
11. Recent research has shown that 78% of transgender people have experienced harassment and
discrimination in an educational setting [6]
12. Following passage of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the number of toilets with facilities
for disabled people has increased by 16%, from 3,054 in 1994 to 3,533 by 2000, even though the
overall number of public toilets has fallen. [7]

This Union believes
1. If we are to encourage inclusivity, we must provide adequate toilet facilities for members of
society with serious mental or physical disabilities.
2. All students at the University of Surrey, including Trans and gender nonconforming people,
deserve to feel comfortable and safe using public facilities on campus e.g. toilets, changing rooms
etcetera.
3. Many trans and gender non-conforming people feel uncomfortable using gendered toilets and
other intimate gendered spaces
4. That to help enable all students to feel safe and comfortable using facilities (as in Believes 1), a
mix of single-gender toilets and gender-neutral toilets should exist across the University of Surrey
campus
5. That existing disabled toilets are not sufficient in number or in distribution to fulfil the need
6. That the conversion of single cubicle gendered toilets to gender neutral toilets is an easily
implementable first step
7. The provision of single-cubicle gender neutral toilets would benefit trans and gender nonconforming people, as well as wider groups of people, including those who are uncomfortable using
multiple stall bathrooms
8. Disabled toilets are not a valid substitution for general gender-neutral toilets, as while these are
often gender neutral, they are first and foremost accessible toilets for disabled people. It is
inappropriate both for a Trans people without physical access needs to be expected to use adapted
toilets, and for a disabled person to be expected to share their toilet facilities with nondisabled
people.

This Union resolves
1. To convert all single-cubicle toilets to gender neutral toilets wherever possible
2. To lobby university departments to implement gender neutral toilets in their buildings, with the
important first step of converting all single-cubicle toilets to gender neutral toilets, wherever
possible
3. To lobby the University of Surrey to ensure that all new University of Surrey buildings include
gender neutral toilets (single and/or multiple cubicle).
4. All USSU buildings undergoing refurbishment should review their bathroom provision to provide
for gender neutral and disabled toilet facilities (single and/or multiple cubicle)
5. To lobby the University of Surrey to do the same (as Resolves 4) during refurbishment of their
buildings
6. None of these changes should impinge on the provision of disabled toilets on campus
7. To ensure gender neutral and disabled toilets are open during the normal hours of operation and
are accessible for those who require them NB: The phrases “gender neutral” and “gendered” are
used in place of “unisex” and “single sex” toilets respectfully, to reflect the fact that sex and gender
do not always align.
References 1.
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200708/cmselect/cmcomloc/636/63605.htm 2.
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201516/cmselect/cmwomeq/390/390.pdf 3.
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/sites/default/files/lgbt_in_britain_hate_crime.pdf 4.
http://www.who.int/disabilities/violence/en/ 5. http://www.telegraph.co.uk/women/life/why-theuk-should-ditch-male-andfemaletoilets-for-gender-neutr/ 6.
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/media/lgbt-facts-and-figures 7.
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200708/cmselect/cmcomloc/636/636.pdf

Equal Access Campaign Motion
This policy was passed many years ago, meaning much of the information is outdated and no longer
resolves
1. According to Article 26 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights "Everyone has the right to
education... and higher education shall be equally accessible to all on the basis of merit".
2. The term refugee applies to any person who, owing to a well-founded fear of persecution for
reasons of race, religion, nationality, or membership of a particular social group or political opinion,
is outside the country of his nationality and is unable, or owing to such fear, is unwilling to avail
himself of the protection of that country.
3. An asylum seeker is someone who has lodged an application for protection on the basis of the
1951 UN Refugee Convention.
4. Discretionary leave to remain (DLR) is a 3 year renewable status that may be granted to
individuals on the basis of an asylum claim, including many separated children from countries such
as Afghanistan, Iran and Iraq.

5. Officially, the University of Surrey’s current policy is that asylum seekers are recognised as
‘international students’ and are expected to pay fees of up to £16,100/year.2Meanwhile, asylum
seekers are: a. not allowed to take out student loans; b. not allowed to apply for grants and
bursaries; c. unable to study in another country; d. denied the right to work in the UK; e. Sometimes
required to wait for years while a decision is made as to whether they can stay in the UK.
6. Current university policy on individuals with DLR as a result of an asylum application is that they
are also considered ‘international students’, while they are: a. not allowed to take out student loads;
b. not allowed to apply for grants and bursaries; c. unable to study in another country.
7. Asylum seeker students and students with DLR are routinely charged overseas fees, yet their
situation and needs are different to those of international students.
8. STAR has been working with the National Union of Students for Equal Access to higher education
for asylum seekers and those with DLR since 2008. Their work is supported by a broad coalition of 28
organisations including the British Red Cross, the Children’s Society, Article 26 and the Refugee
Council.
9. A number of UK universities have amended their admissions policies to allow asylum seekers
and/or students granted DLR as the result of an asylum application to pay ‘home’ tuition fees, or
have waived fees entirely. These include: Manchester University, Leeds University, Royal Holloway
University of London, Salford University and many more.
10. More than 500 students have signed our petition supporting equal access to university for
students seeking refugee protection as part of the Equal Access campaign. 2
https://www.surrey.ac.uk/currentstudents/money/fees/Undergraduate%20Fees/
Beliefs
1. The University should recognise that people who are legally in the UK seeking protection from
persecution and who have been talented enough to be offered a place at that university be able to
take up that place by ensuring that: a. Asylum seekers and people granted DLR are classed as “home
students” for fees purposes. To do this the university commits to waiving any additional costs which
would usually be drawn down from the government for home students. b. Asylum seekers and
people granted DLR are recognised as a vulnerable group in the same way as others from deprived
backgrounds and be allowed to apply for additional support such as scholarships and bursaries.
2. The University should adopt a fair and equitable approach in providing access to higher
education on the basis of merit for all, including asylum seekers or individuals granted DLR on
the basis of an asylum claim.
Resolves
1. To support the Equal Access campaign and work closely with NUS and STAR to create a campaign
specific to our institution/students’ union.
2. To lobby the university to sign the Equal Access Pledge and remove financial barriers preventing
students seeking refugee protection from studying here. Specifically to: a) Enable all those seeking
refugee protection to be able to study as home students b) Recognise that, like other vulnerable

groups, students seeking refugee protection have additional needs and give them access to
additional support, such as fee waivers, bursaries, scholarships and grants.
3. To support campaigns on the national level for equal access to higher education for students
seeking refugee protection and the right to work for asylum seekers.

USSU Divestment from Barclays PLC Bank: Discontinue
The Union has decided to turn the parts unactioned into parts of the sustainability policy and
discontinue this policy as it stands
Notes:
1. Barclays is a major financier of new fossil fuel infrastructure responsible for $10.927 billion of
financing between 2015 and 2017.
2. Barclays have financed companies behind projects including, Lancashire fracking, the Dakota
Access Pipeline and Cerrejon coal mine in Colombia.
3. That fossil fuel projects, funded by banks, contribute to climate change.
4. Other Students’ Unions have divested from Barclays bank including UAE, Bristol, Trinity St
David and Sheffield.
5. The University of Surrey is estimated to have around £3.4 million held in Barclays bank
accounts (https://peopleandplanet.org/university/129479#start-a-campaign)
USSU Believes:
1. Students at Surrey care about environmental sustainability and fighting climate change
2. That with a campaign to divest from unethical banks and sever their connections with cultural
institutions, can force their hand to stop funding the fossil fuel industry.
3. Institutional boycotts are an effective tactic for achieving change at banks like Barclays.
4. That the Union should have no connection with Barclays until such a time when they stop
their fossil fuel finance projects.
USSU Resolves:
1. To (from when this motion is passed) boycott Barclays until they stop financing all fossil fuel
companies and extraction projects globally (with a boycott including banking, other financial
dealings, sponsorship, corporate partnerships, advertising, ATMs and branches on campus).
2. To endeavour to replace the Barclays ATM cash machine located at the Rubix entrance, with a
more environmentally friendly and sustainable bank (for instance Nationwide or the Cooperative
Bank).
3. To mandate the CEO and Accounting Staff of USSU to draft and introduce an ethical banking
policy including considerations for environmental sustainability.
4. To install a plaque in the close vicinity to where Barclays ATM is currently located (outside of
Rubix), informing students of USSU’s commitment to environmental sustainability and that the
SU replaced the Barclays ATM due to its environmental record (wording along the lines of the
plaque from Sheffield SU in Appendix 1)
5. To establish a working group made up of any interested USSU Officers to draft the exact
wording for the plaque referenced in Resolves 4, with final approval of the wording resting with
VP Community

Action Against Healthcare Student University Fees Surrey Student Union: Discontinue
No longer a priority for the Union
Notes:

1. Healthcare Students are currently subject to University tuition fees alongside other University
Academic Courses
2. Healthcare Course Fees were introduced in September 2017
3. Healthcare Students have the right to apply for Student Finance alongside other students on
University Academic Courses.
4. Regulatory bodies regulate the professional standards which must be met prior to initial
registration.
5. Regulatory bodies outline students required hours of learning in clinical practice, often
equating to 40 hours per week.
6. The full time nature of the course makes it difficult for Healthcare students to undertake part
time work adjacent to their studies, alongside students who require childcare may find it even
more of a challenge to work. Surrey Student Union
Believes:
1. Despite this being an ongoing discussion, we are part of a national movement to oppose
increased educational cost across the board.
2. The full time nature and the intensity of a Healthcare Course can often leave students short of
money and this change to funding has made things worse.
3. The re-introduction of fees may be off putting to those students wanting to come into
healthcare professions
4. If Healthcare students are required to work part time alongside a full time placement, this
could impact on their health and subsequently their studies and the patient care they are able to
provide on placement.
5. Finance should not be a barrier to entering Higher Education for any student Surrey Student
Union
Resolves
1. The Students Union is against course fees for Healthcare students across the country.
2. The Students Union will facilitate an open letter to the relevant governing bodies expressing
the wants and beliefs of our students surrounding fee introduction.
3. The SU President will liaise with professional bodies to identify potential campaigns against
these changes that can be supported with the strength of the Union.
The Students Union will strive to support any students who wish to organise or attend campaigns
fighting the changes inflicted upon students affected, within reason

Remove Assessments from Reading Week
The academic year restructure and the new timetabling policy means that this policy is now
outdated.
USSU Notes
1. The University has neglected to act on the Union’s requests to imminently remove assessments
from reading week.
2. There has been a drop in NSS student satisfaction
3. There has been an overall drop in rankings
4. Departments affected by assessments in reading week include: a. Engineering Individual Projects
b. MDDP – across all engineering courses i. Mechanical Engineering ii. Civil Engineering iii. Chemical

Engineering iv. Aerospace Engineering v. Electronic Engineering vi. Medical Engineering vii.
Automotive Engineering
5. The lack of space in lecture halls for the current cohort of students and the continuation of reports
on overcrowding to the Union.
6. The University’s plan to recruit even more students in the coming years.
7. Rise in demand for Wellbeing services as well as a large increase in demand for academic advice in
the Student Union.
USSU Believes
1. Students with assessments in Week 15 have less freedom to participate in the broad range of
enriching activities provided by societies and clubs, that they are entitled to take advantage of
during their time here at the University of Surrey.
2. Reading Week is a crucial time for students to be able to relax after spending their Christmas
breaks revising.
3. Reading Week is fundamental to aid focus, so that students can improve academic performance
and mental well-being to be able to continue with their course in Semester 2.
4. Taking action in response to student feedback is a key driver to increase student satisfaction and
engagement. Being listened to is likely to make students feel valued and therefore increase
engagement with the University and the Union.
5. The University must act on the student voice – which they have failed to do on this matter so far.
USSU Resolves
1. Carry out a survey and consult with course reps to demonstrate student feeling in line with Union
Believes.
2. Lobby the university in response to data gathered.
3. To actively continue the fight against Reading Week Assessments, until successful; or valid
reasoning has been given as to why, against student requests and at the detriment of mental and
academic wellbeing, it will continue.

Sustainability in the Curriculum
Sustainability is now a core activity of the community zone and is also embedded within the
curriculum as desired in this policy. This policy is therefore now also outdated
Notes
Under the people and Planet University League rankings for commitment to Sustainability, the
University of Surrey is ranked 62 out of 100. In addition according to People and Planet, under
‘Education for Sustainable Development’: “1) University of Surrey scores 10/20% for its public
commit to education for sustainable development (ESD) 2a) University of Surrey scores25/50% for
having a framework or strategy for ESD [2b)] 1. University of Surrey scores 0/10% for providing

suitable support and training for ESD 2. University of Surrey scores 0/10% for evidence of student
coursework linked to sustainability projects to improve the environmental management of the
university (often called the Living Lab)”1. There are currently 5 active motions concerning
Sustainability as a whole within the Union
Believes
USSU believes that there is a lack of focus on Sustainability within the University wide curriculum.
Sustainability as a topic should be integrated within the learning and teaching of all students that
come to the University for a Level of higher education.
USSU believes that all students should be aware of how Sustainability affects their future careers
and being leaders in Sustainability can increase a student’s employability.
Resolves
To lobby the University for Sustainability to be fully integrated in all programmes as an aspect of
students education.
To lobby for Sustainability awareness to be a programme outcome on all programmes offered by the
University.
To push for Sustainability in the curriculum within all relevant channels, including the University
Executive Sustainability Steering Group.

Sports Club Covid-19 Officer Policy
Redundant due to the removal of COVID restrictions. We would however like to remind groups to be
vigilant with COVID
BACKGROUND
The following document has been created to outline the reasons for introducing a Students’ Union
Policy in which it would be compulsory for University of Surrey Clubs to have at least 3 Covid-19
Officers before returning to activity.
The Return to Play Process (please see appendix 1) has been approved by the Silver Recovery Group
at the University which includes having 3 Covid-19 Officers per club. However, due to the Covid-19
Officer role being a new position and involving individuals being responsible for the safety of others
at Surrey Sports Park (SSP), the Human Resources Department at SSP have insisted that all Covid-19
Officers would need to complete a Volunteer Agreement and be subject to a DBS Check. Please note;
the general turn around for DBS Checks being approved is approximately 4 weeks.
As of now (09/08/20) we are less than two weeks from the start of Active Freshers and have 201
Covid-19 Officers who would need to complete this process therefore, it would be highly likely that
the DBS Checks would not be completed in time. For this reason, we believe that it would be
sensible to introduce this policy as it would remove the need for the DBS Checks & Volunteer
Agreements which would allow activity to start on time (28/09/20).
Student Clubs Covid-19 Officer Policy
Team Surrey Covid-19 Officer Role

In order to ensure that Government and NGB guidelines are being adhered to for activity, all clubs
must nominate 3 Covid-19 Officers who will act as the primary point of contact for Team Surrey,
facility/venue operators, and club members for matters relating to Covid-19. The responsibilities of
the Covid-19 Officers include;
•
•
•
•
•

Keeping up to date with changes in local government guidance and NGB guidelines.
Ensuring that the measures within the published guidelines and any subsequent updates are
implemented and communicated to all participants as appropriate.
Working with facility/venue operators to support the implementation of any additional
guidelines specific to the facility/venue.
Managing session bookings to ensure that training slots are shared among participants to
avoid individuals missing out on activity which would damage the university experience
Ensuring that all equipment is clean and safe for use for all club sessions

Please note; as the general overseer of the club, the Club President will automatically be appointed
as the Senior Covid-19 Officer. The remaining two officers must be appointed from members of the
club but do not have to be committee members. If a sports club has a PlaySport Activator, it is
compulsory that they also be appointed therefore that club would have 4 Covid-19 Officers. Please
note; that due to the income generated from the PlaySport Programme and it being a product of
SSP, PlaySport Activators will need to complete a DBS Check and Volunteer Agreement so would not
be exempt from doing so under this policy.
All Team Surrey Covid-19 Officers will report to Amber Main, Club Development Officer who will be
providing training for all officers and be their first point of contact for any questions or issues
regarding Covid-19.

Policy to Continue
PREVENT Policy
Union Notes
1. Due to recent events around the world terrorism is a real and significant threat to people and
societies both domestic and internationally.
2. That PREVENT as part of the wider counter terrorism strategy CONTEST is designed to tackle
extremism with in society.
3. That prevents agenda is to: a. Respond to the ideological challenge of terrorism and the threat we
face from those who promote it. b. Prevent people from being drawn into terrorism and ensure that
they are given appropriate advice and support. c. Work with sectors and institutions where there are
risks of radicalisation which we need to address.
4

That there is a legal requirement for institutions and public bodies to comply with PREVENT,
however this obligation is not applicable to the University of Surrey Students Union.

Believes
1. That the PREVENT agenda in practice disproportionately affects already marginalised groups of
society.

2. The monitoring of students in the manner proposed by PREVENT is an infringement of civil
liberties such as freedom of speech and will change the nature of institutions devoted to learning,
personal growth and challenging ideas.
3. The prevent agenda reinforces through the language within its documentation islamophobia and
its by-product of discrimination and racism.
4

A position of non-compliance does not prevent the students union from participating in
discussions with the university on PREVENT or monitoring the effects of prevent on its
membership.

Resolves
1. That the University of Surrey’s Student Union will establish a position of noncompliance with the
prevent agenda.
2. That the union publicly declares its position on PREVENT and the reasons as to why.
3. The University of Surrey’s Student Union will continue working with the University regarding the
Prevent agenda.

USSU’s stance on the Access and Participation Plans
USSU Notes:
1. Access and Participation Plans are a requirement of higher education institutions registered with
the Office for Students. The Plans must show how the organisation will support access, success, and
progression into work of under-represented groups in higher education (e.g. BAME students, carers,
care leavers, disabled students, and so on) from the UK.
2. The University currently provides ‘Full Surrey Award’ bursaries for students under some
conditions; as a requirement, they must live in particular postcodes (these are referred to using
‘POLAR quintiles’).1
3. Under new guidance from the Office for Students, universities will not be required to ring-fence
funding.
4

The Office for Students have set out targets for UK institutions to close gaps in attainment (the
proportion of students receiving a 2:1 or first) and non-continuation (withdrawals) between
disabled/non-disabled students and BAME/white students.2

USSU Believes:
1. The University of Surrey should be more transparent about initiatives to support different sections
of the student community, particularly regarding attainment and progression gaps.
2. Home postcodes are not an appropriate bursary requirement.
3

Bursaries provide a valuable means of support for students from lower socio-economic
backgrounds; this support should be protected in future years.

USSU Resolves:
1. To lobby the University to implement the following in future Access and Participation Plans: a.
Report separate data and actions to improve black students’ and Asian students’ attainment;3 b.
Report separate data and action plans to address black students’ and Asian students’
noncontinuation;4 c. To unlink bursary funding from POLAR quintiles; d. To ring-fence bursary
funding for future years; e. To increase the value of the bursaries annually with inflation; f. To
include information on how capital planning has been considered in recent building works.
2. To lobby the University to introduce additional student engagement, alongside Liberation Reps, to
inform the Access and Participation Plan (through a student panel, for instance).
3. If resolves 1 & 2 are not fulfilled: to release a public response to future Access and Participation
Plans.

Students’ Union Priority Campaign
This Union Notes
1. The Union is committed to creating the changes our members want.
2. The Union is a democratic, member led organisation.
3. The earliest opportunity a first-year student has to shape the Students’ Union does not come
until the annual elections in semester two.
This Union Believes
1. You do not have to have an elected position to make a difference.
2. Many students want to get involved in campaigning, but do not necessarily wish to stand in an
election.
3. We have more strength as a Union when we work together as a group of active students.
4. The Students’ Union should facilitate an annual priority campaign where students can work
together to achieve change.
5. Regardless of elected manifesto pledges, Union Officers are elected to represent students.
This Union Resolves
1. To ask the student body for a Priority Campaign at the beginning of Semester One.
2. To put the composited list of campaigns to an all student vote thereafter.
3. To convene a campaign group of all zone officers and any members wishing to be involved to
deliver on the priority campaign.

Raising and Giving Charity Selection Motion for December Exec (10th)
This Union Notes –
1. Charity selection could have been more transparent for the 19/20 year
2. Despite all charities having the chance to apply, different levels of information were sent
from different charities making it more confusing
3. The process could have been publicised more around the time to encourage more
engagement for students.
This Union Believes –
1. Student’s should shape how the Union is run
2. Bye Law 39.4 ‘The Community zone shall produce a clear and transparent
bidding process for charities seeking funds’
3. To encourage more student engagement
This Union Resolves –
1. The process listed below will be the process of selecting the RAG Charities and added to the
bylaws for the process to be transparent and simple for years to come.
2. Charity partnerships elected by the student body will be as follows:
Every year, one charity will be elected for a 1 year partnership and one for a 2 year
partnership, on alternative years, the 2 year partnership will be re-voted
The charity with the most votes will be selected for the 2 year partnership, the charity with
the second most votes will be selected for the 1 year partnership
3. RAG Charities will be selected democratically by a student vote
4. A description of the charities we support will be included on the RAG USSU website page.

Charity Application Process: Charities fill out application form for a 2-year partnership and send to ussu.ragchair@surrey.ac.uk by
deadline (chosen by community zone) including logo attachment
>>>>
All applications are shortlisted down to 5, by Sabbatical and Part Time Officers using a vote.
>>>>
5 Charities are put forward and voted on my the student body.
>>>>
The top charity will become a partnering charity for 2 years. This process will be repeated every year
(Therefore there will always be 2 charities at any given point with student having the choice every
year)

Exec Proposal: RAG Charities
What is RAG?
Raising and Giving (RAG) is part of the University of Surrey Students' Union. The aim is to fundraise
for a variety of charities, locally and globally as well as engaging widely with the community here at
Guildford. All fundraising is completely student-led, this means that the RAG Chair, and RAG

Representatives, and students choose exactly which events they want to run. Supported by the
other elected officers, RAG aims to raise as much money as possible and have fun while doing so. All
money raised from our events and challenges goes towards our chosen charities for the academic
year.

How choosing a charity currently works:
•

Charities fill out application form and send it back to us by the deadline.

•

The submitted applications are then shared with the SU officers.

•

Based on the votes, the 5 charities with the most votes get presented to the student body.

•

The charity with the most votes from the student body will become our charity partner for
two years while the charity with the second most votes becomes our charity partner for one
year.

Therefore, we suggest the following:
There to be a clause that ensures that at least one of the charities that RAG supports each year is
local to Guildford/Surrey. This will ensure we are further strengthen the relationship between he
union and the local community

Promote healthy drinking at Surrey
USSU States
1. Excessive alcohol consumption has been proven to cause an increase in mental health problems
(Chimwemwe Tembo, 2017).
2. Alcohol consumption is not permitted in some faiths, meaning those students feel excluded from
events run by USSU or clubs/Societies.
USSU Believes
1. There has been a great effort in the last few years to introduce more non-alcoholic events, but
much more should be done.
2. Social events (in the context of this policy) are defined as events promoted by the club/societies’
communication channels
USSU Resolves
1. Support a drink aware campaign across campus, reminding students the negative implications of
alcohol, and that you don’t need to drink alcohol to have fun.
2. Increase the requirement for STARS award so that 10%, 25% and 50% of socials must not be
alcohol centered to achieve Bronze, Silver or Gold STARS respectively.
3. Continue the free soft drinks Rubix for as long as alcohol is served in the venue.

Subsidised Extenuating Circumstances
USSU Notes:

1. To apply for Extenuating Circumstances on the basis of illness or injury, students most provide
evidence in the form of a signed and dated letter from a medical practitioner*.
2. A ‘sick note’ from The Student Health Centre costs £20**.
3

On 1st August 2016 the University stopped subsidising the cost, meaning students are now
required to pay the full amount to receive the necessary evidence.

USSU Believes:
1. The charge of £20 to obtain proof of illness/injury is unnecessary and causes financial constraint
to students who may not be able to afford the fee.
2

The University of Surrey has a duty of care to its students to support them through illness and
injury without forcing financial constraint.

USSU Resolves:
1. To lobby the University into re-instating their subsidisation policy – splitting the charge of the note
between the student and the University Under the following conditions: a. Subsidies do not detract
from the levels of resource available to the Centre for Wellbeing (as of 2019). b. In the first instance,
the Union will lobby for subsidies to be drawn from the Hardship Fund, provided additional resource
can be made available in full. c. The University should fund 50% or more of the cost of doctors’
letters. d. The University should ensure the application process does not present a barrier to access.
2. Request a written response from the University clarifying its position and the circumstances
surrounding the changes to the subsidy procedure in 2016. References *Regulations for extenuating
circumstances 2018/2019, page 4, point 6. ** Guildowns Group Practice website
www.guildowns.nhs.uk/info.aspx?p=16

Team Surrey Equality and Diversity
USSU Notes
1. Last year, VP activity launched a campaign seeking to encourage women to participate in sporting
activities.
2. Sport England produced a report in 2016, detailing the nationwide discrepancy between male and
female sporting participation.
USSU Believes
1. The state of gender equality within Team Surrey should be periodically reviewed as part of an
annual report.
USSU Resolves
1. To have VP Activity lobby the CEO of Surrey Sports Park to commission an annual Team Surrey
report.

2. To have the VP Activity lobby the CEO of Surrey Sports Park to create a provision for non-binary
and transgender changing facilities.
3. The Team Surrey report will include, but not be limited to: a. Total number of male, female, and
mixed teams. b. Allocation of space and equipment provided to male, female and mixed teams.

Policy to Change
USSU’s Detox on Plastic
USSU Notes
1. Plastic is having a detrimental impact on the environment.
2. The call for the end of single-use plastics is at an all-time high; a million plastic bottles are bought
around the world every minute.13
3. Plastic Detox is an initiative taken by UWE, with the aim to ban plastic cups from the bar and ban
plastic bags from the shop.14
4. University of Sheffield Students’ Union15, University of Keele Students’ Union16 and University of
Manchester Students’ Union17 have all launched Zero Waste Shops. These shops sell a huge range
of products free from plastic packaging.
5. Plastic does not biodegrade; it simply breaks down into smaller fragments which ultimately
pollute the land and ocean.18
USSU Believes
1. USSU is a dynamic organisation. It is important to strategically integrate sustainability into the
lives of students.
2. Students are an important part of the wider population, and it is clear that if plastic usage
continues, there could be more plastic in the sea than fish by 205019. It is therefore vital to instil
sustainability into the lives of students so that this continues as they graduate into the wider world.
3. Food vendors on campus have a responsibility to act environmentally sustainably in all aspects
of their business.
USSU Resolves
1. To actively encourage students to reduce usage and waste of products that are nonrecyclable and
educate students regarding how plastic is harming the environment.
2. To provide all first year undergraduate and postgraduate students with a reusable water bottle.
3. To remove the sale of plastic water bottles from Teas & Tees in favour of canned water, with the
aim that all sales of single-use plastic products are removed from Teas & Tees by 2022. a. To lobby
the University to take the same action within Simply Fresh.
4. To launch a Zero Waste Shop, where products are sold free of plastic packaging.

5. To only use and provide biodegradable glitter and confetti at all USSU events.
6. To lobby the University for a water dispenser in each teaching building across all campuses.
7. Food vendors, current or prospective, on campus must use eco-friendly (renewable or
biodegradable) packaging, cutlery and napkins.

Motion to Support Fossil Free Careers Campaign
Proposed by: Josh Bird
Seconded by: Matt Cockfield-Hall
This Union notes:
1. The fossil fuel industry is accelerating the climate and ecological crisis [1], as well as
causing immense social harm through their extractive operations [2].
2. The fossil fuel industry depends on universities to create skilled graduates with a
positive view of the industry [3].
3. 90% of students are either concerned or very concerned about climate change, and
associate the fossil fuel industry with responsibility for the climate crisis [3]. In four
years, there has been a 61% dropoff in graduates entering the industry [4].
4. 61% of oil and gas executives believe that job stability is an industry weakness. [3]
5. The University has committed to “net-zero by 2030” as well as ending all direct
financial investments in fossil fuels, for “moral and financial” reasons. [5][6]
6. The University promotes fossil fuel careers [11], whilst accepting large sums of
money from the industry.
- $7,000,000 from BP to create a research centre studying tar extraction. [7][8]
- £1,000,000 personal donation from the ExxonMobil Chemical President. [9]
- $300,000 donation from Fluor Corporation (oil and gas). [10]
7. The University also promotes fossil fuel careers within the Chemical Engineering
department by advertising companies such as ExxonMobil, Qatar Petroleum, and
Saudi Aramco as positive career/placement opportunities for students [15]
8. The fossil fuel industry is a poor job creator. Renewables create 3x as many jobs per
investment, and energy-efficiency creates 5x as many jobs per investment. [13]
9. Chemical Engineering graduates are in demand for a variety of industries outside of
fossil fuels. These include biofuels, pharmaceuticals, healthcare, manufacturing,
water-treatment, fine-chemicals, agro-chemicals and electronic-chemicals. [11][12]
10. Other Student Unions, including at Cambridge, Oxford, Sheffield, Sussex and
Edinburgh University have recently passed motions in support of the Fossil Free
Careers campaign. [14]

This Union believes:

1. The University’s commitment to sustainability and global responsibility should extend
to the careers that it promotes and trains students to work in.
2. The University’s careers service has a responsibility to promote careers that are
future-proof, with long term prospects and opportunities.
3. The Chemical Engineering department has a responsibility to provide students with
the skills and knowledge needed to access careers outside of the fossil fuel industry.
4. If the University of Surrey joins the community of universities which have already cut
ties with the fossil fuel industry, we will make significant progress towards shutting off
the career pipeline that keeps the industry alive.
This Union resolves:
1. To publicly support the Fossil Free Careers campaign, and demand that our
university careers department:
a. Refuses all new relationships with fossil fuel companies.
b. Declines to renew any current relationships with fossil fuel companies after
the contractually obligated period ends.
c. Adopts a publicly available Ethical Careers Policy that explicitly excludes
fossil fuel companies from recruitment opportunities and event promotion.
2. For the relevant full-time and part-time officer(s) to actively work with the Fossil Free
Careers campaign group and People & Planet to ensure that Union work is linked up
with grassroots campaigners.
3. For the relevant full-time and part-time officer(s) to help set up meetings relating to
the Fossil Free Careers campaign with relevant university departmental and
managerial staff, and include student campaigners where relevant.
4. To send out a press release, website statement and social media post(s) announcing
the passing of this policy and the support of the union for this campaign.
5. To refuse the presence of fossil fuel companies at SU-organised events, and to
boycott University events which include these companies.
6. To refuse the presence of fossil fuel companies in any SU-controlled physical or
digital space.
Note: For the purposes of this document, a fossil fuel company is defined to be any
company which derives more than 10% of its turnover from the sales of non-renewable
energy sources such as coal, coal products, natural gas, derived gas, crude oil or petroleum
products.
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Motion to Support the Arms Off Campus Campaign
Proposed by: Robert Petrie
Seconded by: Jodie Cattrall
This Union notes:
1. The UK arms industry, in particular BAE Systems, have significant dealings with countries
recognised as human rights abusers. This includes Saudi Arabia who have bombed Red
Cross & Médecins Sans Frontières medical facilties during their attacks in Yemen[1][2][3],
and with whom BAE Systems have an ongoing contract[4][16][17].
2. BAE’s main arms deal with Saudi Arabia placed absolutely no conditions on human rights
reform [23]. They have also sold surveillance technology to multiple repressive
governments, including Saudi Arabia [21].
3. BAE pleaded guilty to US Dept. of Justice and the UK Serious Fraud Office (SFO) on
charges of false accounting and making misleading statements regarding the sale of fighter
planes to Saudi Arabia, deals in the Czech Republic and alleged corruption in a sale to
Tanzania [22].
4. BAE have also been subject to numerous other corruption allegations, including (but by no
means limited to) paying £1m to the Chilean dictator, Pinochet [24]; paying bribes in excess
of £7m to secure the sale of frigates to the Romanian Navy, where they overcharged the
country 3x and sold them redundant weaponry [25]; and payments made in relation to an
arms deal with South Africa, triggering an investigation by the SFO [26].
5. Accounting for only 0.2% of UK jobs [5], the arms industry is not a major employer for
graduates and is arguably in decline. In particular, BAE is heavily subsidised by the
taxpayer, and does little to create jobs in the UK, investing only marginally more than they
allegedly spent bribing one single Saudi prince [27].
6. More jobs are created in clean energy, infrastructure, healthcare, and education per $1m
invested than in the arms industry [6].
7. The University of Surrey has a close relationship with BAE Systems, taking the form of
rental space on the Surrey Research Park[7], inviting them to careers events[8], promoting
them as a key reason to apply to the University[9][10][11], partnering with them on research
projects[12], and promoting them through Pathfinder and at career fairs.
8. Despite the focus of the space in Surrey Research Park being only on “Applied
Intelligence”, ~95% of BAE Systems’ sales are to military customers [15].
9. The University has an ‘Ethical Investment Policy’ which prohibits investment in companies
deriving more than 10% of their turnover from ‘defence’ products [13].
10. The University Employability & Careers department has a ‘Vacancy Advertising Policy’
which sets limits on what kind of job opportunities they will advertise. There is currently no
provision relating to arms companies [14].

11. A number of other Student Unions have successfully passed similar motions, including
Sheffield, Leeds (specifically BAE Systems), and SOAS [18][19][20].
This Union believes:
1. By continuing to promote careers in the arms industry and by maintaining close
relationships with arms companies, the University is tacitly endorsing the many atrocities
enabled by companies like BAE Systems around the world.
2. The University has a moral responsibility to promote ethical careers, and to ensure ethical
partnerships and that they are currently failing badly in this regard.
3. Students, particularly those in STEM, would be better served by the promotion of careers in
industries such as renewables, medical technologies, etc.
4. To stop promoting careers in the arms industry would be consistent with the existing
position of the University on ethical investment to prohibit partnerships with and promotion
of arms companies, as these are a form of human investment.
This Union resolves:
1. To oppose the University’s relationship with the arms industry.
2. To pressure the University to instead commit to promoting careers in sectors such as clean
energy and healthcare.
3. To publicly support the Arms Off Campus campaign, and demand that our university
careers department:
a. Refuses all new relationships with arms companies.
b. Declines to renew any current relationships with these companies after the
contractually obligated period ends, including leases at Surrey Research Park.
c. Adopts a publicly available Ethical Careers Policy that explicitly excludes these
companies from recruitment opportunities, event promotion, and advertising.
4. For the relevant full-time and part-time officer(s) to actively work with the Arms Off Campus
campaign group and People & Planet to ensure that Union work is linked up with grassroots
campaigners.
5. For the relevant full-time and part-time officer(s) to help set up meetings relating to the
Arms Off Campus campaign with relevant university departmental and managerial staff,
and include student campaigners where relevant.
6. To send out a press release, website statement and social media post(s) announcing the
passing of this policy and the support of the union for this campaign.
7. To refuse the presence of arms companies at SU-organised events, and to boycott
University events which include these companies.
8. To refuse the presence of arms companies in any SU-controlled physical or digital space.

Note: For the purposes of this document, an arms company is defined to be any company which
derives more than 10% of its turnover from weapons/military technology products.
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Our Mission:
“To enrich students’ lives, the community in which they live and the University
of Surrey by creating the changes they want and to enable them to achieve
their ambitions.”

About this Report
The first annual report was presented to the AMM in 2018 and we have been able to make comparisons
between the years – a report was not compiled in 2020 as national reporting was suspended due to COVID19. It should be noted the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations came into force on
1st October 2018 and the requirement to publish information does not currently apply to the Students’
Union as we employ less than 250 employees.
The following information refers to all full-time, part time staff and the sabbatical team

Snapshot of SU Staff on 5th April 2022
STAFF GENDER SPLIT

DISABILITY DISCLOSURE

66% FEMALE

4%

(58% in 2021)

31% MALE

(8% in 2021)

(42% in 2021)

3% NON-BINARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

55% FEMALE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

100% FEMALE

(65% in 2021)

45% MALE

(67% in 2021)

(35% in 2021)

0% MALE

Board:

(33% in 2021)

5
1
1
5

sabbatical officers
part time officer
student trustee
external trustees

ETHNICITY

56% WHITE (66% in 2021)
17% BAME (19% in 2021)
27% UNKNOWN* (15% in 2021)
*Prefer not to disclose

4 external trustees

STAFF TOTAL

187
(160 in 2021)

What does this data mean?
The number of female employees has continued to increase each year now making up 66% of the
workforce. The number of female employees has grown steadily since 2018 and the number of male
employees is at its lowest since 2018. In recruitment for both full time roles and part time roles we have
seen an overall reduction in male applications for vacancies. For the first time we have included staff who
report as non-binary. The Students’ Union believes that gender identity is broader than just ‘male and
female’ and although the regulations do require us to report in this way, we recognise and welcome
colleagues of all gender identities. For reporting purposes of the gender pay gap, following the government
guidelines, staff who are not recorded as male or female have not been included in the gender pay results.
Following the recent resignation of the CEO, an interim management team is currently in place which is
100% female. A recruitment process is now underway, and diversity has been an important consideration
within the selection process.
The results compared to 2021 show a decrease of 10% in the staff who identify as white and also a
decrease of 2% who identify as BAME and the number who prefer not to disclose has increased by 12%.

What happens now?
It will be the organisation’s priority to continue to review recruitment methods to attract diverse
candidates for all roles paying particular attention to wording within adverts and areas jobs are advertised;
work with student groups to understand barriers to applying/working in the SU and how these can be
removed and continue to work towards becoming a Disability Confident Employer. The Students’ Union is
also a committed Mindful Employer taking a positive approach towards mental health at work.

What are the Students’ Union gender pay gap figures?

0%

0.21%

(0% in 2021)

(0.3% in 2021)

OUR MEDIAN

OUR MEAN GENDER

GENDER PAY GAP

PAY GAP

0%
Quartile
Upper Quartile
Upper Middle Quartile
Lower Middle Quartile
Lower Quartile

BONUS

Female (%)
2022
56%
54%
50%
63%

2021
52%
46%
63%
67%

Male (%)
2022
44%
45%
50%
37%

2021
48%
54%
37%
33%

What’s the difference between a pay gap and equal pay?
Equal pay deals with the pay differences between men and women who carry out the same jobs, similar jobs,
or work of equal value. Gender pay gap reporting shows the difference in the average pay between all men
and women in the workforce.

Key Terms
Mean
The difference between average hourly earnings of men and women

Median
The difference between the midpoints in the ranges of hourly earnings of men and women

Quartiles
The proportion of men and women in different pay bands, with the workforce divided into four equal parts
(quartiles)
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